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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the exhibits attached hereto contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements concern the Company’s anticipated
results and developments in the Company’s operations in future periods, planned exploration and development of its properties,
plans related to its business and other matters that may occur in the future. These statements relate to analyses and other
information that are based on forecasts of future results, estimates of amounts not yet determinable and assumptions of
management.
Any statements that express or involve discussions with respect to predictions, expectations, beliefs, plans, projections,
objectives, assumptions or future events or performance (often, but not always, using words or phrases such as “expects” or “does
not expect”, “is expected”, “anticipates” or “does not anticipate”, “plans”, “estimates” or “intends”, or stating that certain actions,
events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved) are not statements of historical fact
and may be forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual events or results to differ from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements, including, without limitation:
•

risks related to our properties being in the exploration stage;

•

risks related our mineral operations being subject to government regulation;

•

risks related to our ability to obtain additional capital to develop our resources, if any;

•

risks related to mineral exploration and development activities;

•

risks related to our insurance coverage for operating risks;

•

risks related to the fluctuation of prices for precious and base metals, such as gold, silver and copper;

•

risks related to the competitive industry of mineral exploration;

•

risks related to our title and rights in our mineral properties;

•

risks related to our limited operating history;

•

risks related the possible dilution of our common stock from additional financing activities;

•

risks related to potential conflicts of interest with our management;

•

risks related to our subsidiaries activities; and

•

risks related to our shares of common stock.

This list is not exhaustive of the factors that may affect our forward-looking statements. Some of the important risks and
uncertainties that could affect forward-looking statements are described further under the sections titled “Risk Factors and
Uncertainties”, “Description of the Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report. Should one
or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. We caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. We disclaim any obligation subsequently to revise any
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of
anticipated or unanticipated events, except as required by law.
We qualify all the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report by the foregoing cautionary statements.
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PART I
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
General
We were incorporated in the State of Idaho on August 28, 1968 under the name Silver Crystal Mines, Inc., to engage in the business of
exploring for precious metal deposits and advancing them toward production. We ceased exploration activities during the 1990s and
became virtually inactive. In December 2003, a group of investors purchased 80-percent of the issued and outstanding common stock
from the then-controlling management team. In January 2004, we affected a one-for-four reverse split of our issued and outstanding
shares of common stock and increased the number of our authorized shares of common stock to 100 million with a par value of $.001.
Unless otherwise indicated, all references herein to shares outstanding and share issuances have been adjusted to give effect to the
aforementioned stock split. On February 2, 2004, our name was changed to Timberline Resources Corporation. Since the reorganization,
we have been in an exploration stage evaluating, acquiring and exploring mineral prospects with potential for economic deposits of
precious and base metals. A prospect is defined as a mining property, the value of which has not been determined by exploration. On
August 27, 2008 we reincorporated into the State of Delaware pursuant to a merger agreement approved by our shareholders on August
22, 2008.
On March 6, 2006, we acquired Kettle Drilling, Inc. (which we refer to as Kettle) as a wholly owned subsidiary. Kettle was formed in
1996 and provides drilling services to the mining and mineral exploration industries across North America and worldwide. In September
2008, Kettle Drilling, Inc. changed its name to Timberline Drilling Incorporated (which we refer to as Timberline Drilling).
In July 2007, Timberline closed its purchase of the Butte Highlands Gold Project. In October 2008, the Company announced that it had
agreed to form a 50/50 joint venture with Small Mine Development (SMD) at the Butte Highlands project. In July 2009, the Company
finalized the joint venture agreement with Highland Mining, LLC (an affiliate of SMD) to create Butte Highlands JV, LLC (“BHJV”).
Under terms of the joint venture agreement, Timberline will be carried to production by Highland Mining, LLC (“Highland”), which will
fund all mine development costs and began development in the summer of 2009. Both Timberline’s and Highland’s 50-percent share of
costs will be paid out of proceeds from future mine production.
Unless otherwise indicated, any reference to Timberline, or “we”, “us”, “our”, etc. refers to Timberline Resources Corporation and/or its
wholly owned subsidiary, Timberline Drilling.
Our Competition
Both the mineral exploration and drilling industries are intensely competitive in all phases. In our mineral exploration activities, we will
compete with many companies possessing greater financial resources and technical facilities than us for the acquisition of mineral
concessions, claims, leases and other mineral interests as well as for the recruitment and retention of qualified employees. We must
overcome significant barriers to enter into the business of mineral exploration as a result of our limited operating history.
Similarly, in our drilling business, our competition includes many companies with significantly greater experience, larger client bases,
and substantially greater financial resources. There are significant barriers to entry including large capital requirements and the
recruitment and retention of qualified, experienced employees.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete in any of our business areas effectively with current or future competitors or that
the competitive pressures faced by us will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
Our Offices and Other Facilities
Timberline currently maintains its administrative office at 101 East Lakeside Ave., Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814. The telephone number is
(866) 513-4859 (toll free) or (208) 664-4859. Timberline Drilling maintains its administrative office at 2775 Howard Street, Suite 2,
Coeur d’Alene, ID 83815. Timberline Drilling’s telephone number is 208-665-7211. In addition, Timberline Drilling maintains a shop
facility in Coeur d’Alene, ID and an operational facility in Elko, NV. Timberline Drilling’s Mexican subsidiary, World Wide
Exploration, S.A. de C.V., maintains an administrative office and warehouses in Hermosillo and Torreon, Mexico.
Our Employees
Timberline, the parent company, is an exploration company and currently has six employees, including certain officers and directors.
Management expects to hire staff and additional management as necessary as implementation of our business plan requires.
Our subsidiaries, Timberline Drilling and World Wide Exploration, have approximately 75 full-time employees in the U.S. and 30 fulltime employees in Mexico, respectively. We believe that our relationship with our employees is good.
Regulation
The exploration, drilling and mining industries operate in a legal environment that requires permits to conduct virtually all operations.
Thus permits are required by local, state and federal government agencies. Federal agencies that may be involved include: The U.S.
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Forest Service (USFS), Bureau of Land Management (BLM), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), National Institute for
Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) and the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS).
Individual states also have various environmental regulatory bodies, such as Departments of Ecology and so on. Local authorities,
usually counties, also have control over mining activity. The various permits address such issues as prospecting, development,
production, labor standards, taxes, occupational health and safety, toxic substances, air quality, water use, water discharge, water quality,
noise, dust, wildlife impacts, as well as other environmental and socioeconomic issues.
Prior to receiving the necessary permits to explore or mine, the operator must comply with all regulatory requirements imposed by all
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the project area. Very often, in order to obtain the requisite permits, the operator must
have its land reclamation, restoration or replacement plans pre-approved. Specifically, the operator must present its plan as to how it
intends to restore or replace the affected area. Often all or any of these requirements can cause delays or involve costly studies or
alterations of the proposed activity or time frame of operations, in order to mitigate impacts. All of these factors make it more difficult
and costly to operate and have a negative and sometimes fatal impact on the viability of the exploration or mining operation. Finally, it is
possible that future changes in these laws or regulations could have a significant impact on our business, causing those activities to be
economically reevaluated at that time. For a more detailed discussion of governmental and environmental regulatory requirements
applicable to our mineral exploration business see the section titled “Description of Properties - Overview of Regulatory, Economic and
Environmental Issues” below.
Overview of Timberline Drilling, Incorporated – Our Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
In March 2006, Timberline acquired Kettle Drilling, Inc., which in September 2008 changed its name to Timberline Drilling
Incorporated. Timberline Drilling provides core drilling services to mining and mineral exploration companies throughout North
America, combining state of the art equipment, world-class technical expertise, innovative thinking, and a strong safety record.
Timberline Drilling specializes in underground drilling services in support of active mining operations and advanced exploration projects.
Working primarily with established companies, its business is less cyclical than that of surface drillers at early-stage exploration sites,
where supplies, infrastructure, and project funding are less predictable.
Timberline Drilling, along with its wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, World Wide Exploration, S.A. de C.V. (which we refer to as
World Wide or WWE), have a combined fleet of 22 drill rigs which generated revenues of approximately $5.0-million in the quarter
ending September 30, 2009, raising overall revenue for the 2009 fiscal year to more than $17.5 million.
Looking ahead to the 2010 fiscal year, the current credit and financial crisis and general economic uncertainty continue to affect the
ability of some of our potential clients to raise funds for drilling programs. Our underground drilling operations in support of operating
mines continue to perform well in the U.S., however activity in Mexico has slowed considerably in the past few months. Due to the
downturn in surface drilling contracts, as well as decreased drilling activity in Mexico, revenues at Timberline Drilling decreased
considerably in comparison to the prior fiscal year. However, we expect our revenues and profits to stabilize in the foreseeable future,
with a potential for modest growth should activity in Mexico increase and commodity prices remain at or near current levels. We also
expect to continue to improve our cash flows as management focuses on profitability and customer service at Timberline Drilling.
Overview of Our Mineral Exploration Business
Our parent company is a mineral exploration company. Mineral exploration is essentially a research activity that does not produce a
product. Successful exploration often results in increased project value that can be realized through the optioning or selling of the
claimed site to larger companies. As such, we acquire properties which we believe have potential to host economic concentrations of
minerals, particularly gold, silver and copper. These acquisitions have and may take the form of unpatented mining claims on federal
land, or leasing claims, or private property owned by others. An unpatented mining claim is an interest that can be acquired to the
mineral rights on open lands of the federally owned public domain. Claims are staked in accordance with the Mining Law of 1872,
recorded with the federal government pursuant to laws and regulations established by the Bureau of Land Management (the Federal
agency that administers America’s public lands), and grant the holder of the claim a possessory interest in the mineral rights, subject to
the paramount title of the United States.
We will perform basic geological work to identify specific drill targets on the properties, and then collect subsurface samples by drilling
to confirm the presence of mineralization (the presence of economic minerals in a specific area or geological formation). We may enter
into joint venture agreements with other companies to fund further exploration work. It is our plan to focus on assembling a high quality
group of mid-stage mineral (gold, silver, and copper) exploration prospects, using the experience and contacts of the management group.
By such prospects, we mean properties that may have been previously identified by third parties, including prior owners such as
exploration companies, as mineral prospects with potential for economic mineralization. Often these properties have been sampled,
mapped and sometimes drilled, usually with indefinite results. Accordingly, such acquired projects will either have some prior
exploration history or will have strong similarity to a recognized geologic ore deposit model. Geographic emphasis will be placed on the
western United States.
The focus of our activity has been to acquire properties that we believe to be undervalued; including those that we believe to hold
previously unrecognized mineral potential. Properties have been acquired through the location of unpatented mining claims (which allow
the claimholder the right to mine the minerals without holding title to the property), or by negotiating lease/option agreements. Our
Executive Chairman and Vice-President of Exploration, Paul Dircksen, has experience in evaluating, staking and filing unpatented
mining claims, and in negotiating and preparing mineral lease agreements in connection with those mining claims.
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The geologic potential and ore deposit models have been defined and specific drill targets identified on the majority of our properties.
Our property evaluation process involves using basic geologic fieldwork to perform an initial evaluation of a property. If the evaluation
is positive, we seek to acquire it, either by staking unpatented mining claims on open public domain, or by leasing the property from the
owner of private property or the owner of unpatented claims. Once acquired, we then typically make a more detailed evaluation of the
property. This detailed evaluation involves expenditures for exploration work which may include rock and soil sampling, geologic
mapping, geophysics, trenching, drilling, or other means to determine if economic mineralization is present on the property.
Portions of our mineral properties are owned by third parties, and leased to us. These agreements are held by Hecla Mining Company,
and Snowshoe Mining Company. In addition, we own a number of unpatented mining claims outright. Approximately 38 of these claims
are located near our Snowstorm Project in Shoshone County, Idaho, and have been included in the earn-in agreement with Hecla Mining
Company. An “earn-in agreement” requires one party to spend a certain amount of money, usually in mineral exploration expenditures,
to earn a specified percentage ownership in the property. On February 1, 2006, pursuant to the agreement, Hecla elected to withdraw from
the venture but retains four percent (4%) net smelter return royalty on any mineral production from the subject claims. In conjunction
with this withdrawal, Hecla assigned approximately 750 acres of mineral rights in the area to us. In Montana, the Butte Highlands
Property is located in Silver Bow County and is comprised of 11 patented and 110 unpatented claims. Six additional groups of
unpatented claims owned by the Company are located in Sanders and Lincoln counties, Montana. The contract on the East Camp
Douglas property in Mineral County, Nevada is comprised of 8 unpatented claims.
All of the leases are contracts with varied terms, all of which provide for us to earn an interest in the property or receive a royalty. See
Description of Property below.
Our strategy with properties deemed to be of higher risk or those that would require very large exploration expenditures is to present them
to larger companies for joint venture. Our joint venture strategy is intended to maximize the abilities and skills of the management group,
conserve capital, and provide superior leverage for investors. If we present a property to a major company and they are not interested, we
will continue to seek an interested partner.
For our prospects where drilling costs are reasonable and the likelihood of success seems favorable, we will undertake our own drilling.
The target depths, the tenor of mineralization on the surface, and the general geology of the area are all factors that determine the risk as
calculated by us in conducting a drilling operation. Mineral exploration is a research and development activity and is, by definition, a
high risk business that relies on numerous untested assumptions and variables. Accordingly, we make our decisions on a project by
project basis. We do not have any steadfast formula that we apply in determining the reasonableness of drilling costs in comparison to
the likelihood of success, i.e. in determining whether success seems “favorable.”
The Commodities Market
The prices of gold, silver and copper have fluctuated during the last several years, although the price of gold has risen steadily in recent
months. In 2007, gold traded between approximately $600 and $840 per ounce, based on the London PM Fix Price. In 2008, gold traded
between approximately $690 and $1,025, and in 2009 to date, gold has traded between approximately $810 and $1,212 (based on the
London PM Fix Price). The price of gold based on the London PM Fix Price closed at $1,212 on December 2, 2009.
In 2007, the price of silver per ounce ranged from approximately $11.70 to $15.80, based on the London Fix Price. In 2008, the price of
silver ranged from approximately $8.80 to $20.90 per ounce, and in 2009 to date, silver has traded between approximately $10.50 and
$19.18 (based on the London Fix Price). The price of silver based on the London Fix Price closed at $19.18 on December 2, 2009.
During 2008, the approximate price per pound of copper ranged from $1.20 to $4.10. In 2009 to date, the approximate price per pound of
copper ranged from approximately $1.25 to 3.25. The price of copper closed at $3.21 per pound on December 2, 2009, based on the
London Metal Exchange price.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS AND UNCERTAINTIES
An investment in a mine service and an exploration stage mining company with a short history of operations such as ours involves an
unusually high amount of risk, both unknown and known, present and potential, including, but not limited to the risks enumerated below.
Our failure to successfully address the risks and uncertainties described below would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and/or results of operations, and the trading price of our common stock may decline and investors may lose all or part
of their investment. We cannot assure you that we will successfully address these risks or other unknown risks that may affect our
business.
Estimates of mineralized material are forward-looking statements inherently subject to error. Although resource estimates require a high
degree of assurance in the underlying data when the estimates are made, unforeseen events and uncontrollable factors can have significant
adverse or positive impacts on the estimates. Actual results will inherently differ from estimates. The unforeseen events and
uncontrollable factors include: geologic uncertainties including inherent sample variability, metal price fluctuations, variations in mining
and processing parameters, and adverse changes in environmental or mining laws and regulations. The timing and effects of variances
from estimated values cannot be accurately predicted.
Risks Associated With Mining and The Exploration Portion of Our Business
All of our properties are in the exploration stage. There is no assurance that we can establish the existence of any mineral reserve on
any of our properties in commercially exploitable quantities. Until we can do so, we cannot earn any revenues from these properties
and if we do not do so we will lose all of the funds that we expend on exploration. If we do not discover any mineral reserve in a
commercially exploitable quantity, the exploration component of our business could fail.
We have not established that any of our mineral properties contain any mineral reserve according to recognized reserve guidelines, nor
can there be any assurance that we will be able to do so. A mineral reserve is defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission in its
Industry Guide 7 (http://www.sec.gov/divisions/corpfin/forms/industry.htm#secguide7) as that part of a mineral deposit, which could be
economically and legally extracted or produced at the time of the reserve determination. The probability of an individual prospect ever
having a "reserve" that meets the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission's Industry Guide 7 is extremely remote; in all
probability our mineral property does not contain any 'reserve' and any funds that we spend on exploration will probably be lost. Even if
we do eventually discover a mineral reserve on one or more of our properties, there can be no assurance that they can be developed into
producing mines and extract those minerals. Both mineral exploration and development involve a high degree of risk and few properties
which are explored are ultimately developed into producing mines.
The commercial viability of an established mineral deposit will depend on a number of factors including, by way of example, the size,
grade and other attributes of the mineral deposit, the proximity of the mineral deposit to infrastructure such as a smelter, roads and a point
for shipping, government regulation and market prices. Most of these factors will be beyond our control, and any of them could increase
costs and make extraction of any identified mineral deposit unprofitable.
Mineral operations are subject to applicable law and government regulation. Even if we discover a mineral reserve in a commercially
exploitable quantity, these laws and regulations could restrict or prohibit the exploitation of that mineral reserve. If we cannot exploit
any mineral reserve that we might discover on our properties, our business may fail.
Both mineral exploration and extraction require permits from various foreign, federal, state, provincial and local governmental authorities
and are governed by laws and regulations, including those with respect to prospecting, mine development, mineral production, transport,
export, taxation, labor standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, environmental protection, mine safety
and other matters. Regarding our future ground disturbing activity on federal land, we will be required to obtain a permit from the US
Forest Service or the Bureau of Land Management prior to commencing exploration. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
obtain or maintain any of the permits required for the continued exploration of our mineral properties or for the construction and
operation of a mine on our properties at economically viable costs. If we cannot accomplish these objectives, our business could face
difficulty and/or fail.
We believe that we are in compliance with all material laws and regulations that currently apply to our activities but there can be no
assurance that we can continue to do so. Current laws and regulations could be amended and we might not be able to comply with them,
as amended. Further, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain or maintain all permits necessary for our future operations,
or that we will be able to obtain them on reasonable terms. To the extent such approvals are required and are not obtained, we may be
delayed or prohibited from proceeding with planned exploration or development of our mineral properties.
Environmental hazards unknown to us, which have been caused by previous or existing owners or operators of the properties, may exist
on the properties in which we hold an interest. In past years we have been engaged in exploration in northern Idaho, which is currently
the site of a Federal Superfund cleanup project. Although the Company is no longer involved in this or other areas at present, it is possible
that environmental cleanup or other environmental restoration procedures could remain to be completed or mandated by law, causing
unpredictable and unexpected liabilities to arise. At the date of this Annual Report, the Company is not aware of any environmental
issues or litigation relating to any of its current or former properties.
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Future legislation and administrative changes to the mining laws could prevent us from exploring our properties.
New state and U.S. federal laws and regulations, amendments to existing laws and regulations, administrative interpretation of existing
laws and regulations, or more stringent enforcement of existing laws and regulations, could have a material adverse impact on our ability
to conduct exploration and mining activities. Any change in the regulatory structure making it more expensive to engage in mining
activities could cause us to cease operations.
If we establish the existence of a mineral reserve on any of our properties in a commercially exploitable quantity, we will require
additional capital in order to develop the property into a producing mine. If we cannot raise this additional capital, we will not be able
to exploit the reserve, and our business could fail.
If we do discover mineral reserves in commercially exploitable quantities on any of our properties, we will be required to expend
substantial sums of money to establish the extent of the reserve, develop processes to extract it and develop extraction and processing
facilities and infrastructure. Although we may derive substantial benefits from the discovery of a major deposit, there can be no assurance
that such a resource will be large enough to justify commercial operations, nor can there be any assurance that we will be able to raise the
funds required for development on a timely basis. If we cannot raise the necessary capital or complete the necessary facilities and
infrastructure, our business may fail.
Mineral exploration and development is subject to extraordinary operating risks. We do not currently insure against these risks. In the
event of a cave-in or similar occurrence, our liability may exceed our resources, which would have an adverse impact on our
Company.
Mineral exploration, development and production involve many risks, which even a combination of experience, knowledge and careful
evaluation may not be able to overcome. Our operations will be subject to all the hazards and risks inherent in the exploration,
development and production of resources, including liability for pollution, cave-ins or similar hazards against which we cannot insure or
against which we may elect not to insure. Any such event could result in work stoppages and damage to property, including damage to
the environment. We do not currently maintain any insurance coverage against these operating hazards. The payment of any liabilities
that arise from any such occurrence would have a material, adverse impact on our Company.
Estimates of mineralized material are subject to evaluation uncertainties that could result in project failure.
Our exploration and future mining operations, if any, are and would be faced with risks associated with being able to accurately predict
the quantity and quality of mineralized material within the earth using statistical sampling techniques. Estimates of any mineralized
material on any of our properties would be made using samples obtained from appropriately placed trenches, test pits and underground
workings and intelligently designed drilling. There is an inherent variability of assays between check and duplicate samples taken
adjacent to each other and between sampling points that cannot be reasonably eliminated. Additionally, there also may be unknown
geologic details that have not been identified or correctly appreciated at the current level of accumulated knowledge about our properties.
This could result in uncertainties that cannot be reasonably eliminated from the process of estimating mineralized material. If these
estimates were to prove to be unreliable, we could implement an exploitation plan that may not lead to commercially viable operations in
the future.
Mineral prices are subject to dramatic and unpredictable fluctuations.
Other than from our drilling services subsidiaries, we expect to derive revenues, if any, from the eventual extraction and sale of precious
and base metals such as gold, silver and copper. The price of those commodities has fluctuated widely in recent years, and is affected by
numerous factors beyond our control including international, economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange
fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new extraction
developments and improved extraction and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of base and precious metals, and,
therefore, the economic viability of any of our exploration projects, cannot accurately be predicted.
The mining industry is highly competitive and there is no assurance that we will continue to be successful in acquiring mineral
claims. If we cannot continue to acquire properties to explore for mineral resources, we may be required to reduce or cease
exploration activity and/or operations.
The mineral exploration, development, and production industry is largely un-integrated. We compete with other exploration companies
looking for mineral resource properties and the resources that can be produced from them. While we compete with other exploration
companies in the effort to locate and license mineral resource properties, we do not compete with them for the removal or sales of mineral
products from our properties if we should eventually discover the presence of them in quantities sufficient to make production
economically feasible. Readily available markets exist worldwide for the sale of gold and other mineral products. Therefore, we will
likely be able to sell any gold or mineral products that we identify and produce.
There are hundreds of public and private companies that are actively engaged in mineral exploration. Furthermore, since the mineral
exploration sphere is so diverse and there are virtually no similar exploration companies with a revenue producing drilling subsidiary, it is
quite difficult to identify specific primary competitors and make comparisons to our Company. A representative sample of exploration
companies that are similar to our Company in size, financial resources and primary objective include such publicly traded mineral
exploration companies as Goldrich Mining Company (GRMC), General Moly, Inc. (GMO), Energold Drilling (EGD), Cabo Drilling
(CBE), Klondex Mining (KDX) and Mines Management (MGN).
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Many of our competitors have greater financial resources and technical facilities. Accordingly, we will attempt to compete primarily
through the knowledge and experience of our management. This competition could adversely affect our ability to acquire suitable
prospects for exploration in the future. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that we will acquire any interest in additional mineral
resource properties that might yield reserves or result in commercial mining operations.
Third parties may challenge our rights to our mineral properties or the agreements that permit us to explore our properties may expire
if we fail to timely renew them and pay the required fees.
In connection with the acquisition of our mineral properties, we sometimes conduct only limited reviews of title and related matters, and
obtain certain representations regarding ownership. These limited reviews do not necessarily preclude third parties from challenging our
title and, furthermore, our title may be defective. Consequently, there can be no assurance that we hold good and marketable title to all of
our mining concessions and mining claims. If any of our concessions or claims were challenged, we could incur significant costs and lose
valuable time in defending such a challenge. These costs or an adverse ruling with regards to any challenge of our titles could have a
material adverse affect on our financial position or results of operations. There can be no assurance that any such disputes or challenges
will be resolved in our favor.
We are not aware of challenges to the location or area of any of our mining claims. There is, however, no guarantee that title to the claims
will not be challenged or impugned in the future.
Acquisitions and integration issues may expose us to risks.
Our business strategy includes making targeted acquisitions. Any acquisition that we make may be of a significant size, may change the
scale of our business and operations, and may expose us to new geographic, political, operating, financial and geological risks. Our
success in our acquisition activities depends on our ability to identify suitable acquisition candidates, negotiate acceptable terms for any
such acquisition and integrate the acquired operations successfully with our own. Any acquisitions would be accompanied by risks. For
example, there may be significant decreases in commodity prices after we have committed to complete the transaction and have
established the purchase price or exchange ratio; a potential materialized property may prove to be below expectations; we may have
difficulty integrating and assimilating the operations and personnel of any acquired companies, realizing anticipated synergies and
maximizing the financial and strategic position of the combined enterprise and maintaining uniform standards, policies and controls
across the organization; the integration of the acquired business or assets may disrupt our ongoing business and its relationships with
employees, customers, suppliers and contractors; and the acquired business or assets may have unknown liabilities which may be
significant. If we choose to use equity securities as consideration for such an acquisition, existing shareholders may suffer dilution.
Alternatively, we may choose to finance any such acquisition with our existing resources. There can be no assurance that the Company
would be successful in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered in connection with such acquisitions.
Joint ventures and other partnerships in relation to our properties may expose us to risks.
We are currently involved in, and may enter into in the future, joint ventures or other partnership arrangements with other parties in
relation to the exploration, development and production of certain of the properties in which we have an interest, particularly the Butte
Highlands project. Joint ventures can often require unanimous approval of the parties to the joint venture or their representatives for
certain fundamental decisions such as an increase or reduction of registered capital, merger, division, dissolution, amendments of
constating documents, and the pledge of joint venture assets, which means that each joint venture party may have a veto right with respect
to such decisions which could lead to a deadlock in the operations of the joint venture or partnership. Further, we may be unable to exert
control over strategic decisions made in respect of such properties. Any failure of such other companies to meet their obligations to us or
to third parties, or any disputes with respect to the parties' respective rights and obligations, could have a material adverse effect on the
joint ventures or their properties and therefore could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial performance,
cash flows and the price of the common shares.
Risks Related To Our Company
We have a limited operating history on which to base an evaluation of our business and prospects.
Although we have been in the business of exploring mineral resource properties since our incorporation in 1968, we were inactive for
many years prior to our new management in January 2004. Since January 2004, we have not yet located any mineral reserve. As a result,
we have not had any revenues from our exploration division, however we do have a drilling services wholly owned subsidiary which has
generated revenues in past fiscal years and which we expect to generate revenues in the future. In addition, our operating history has been
restricted to the acquisition and exploration of our mineral properties and this does not provide a meaningful basis for an evaluation of our
prospects if we ever determine that we have a mineral reserve and commence the construction and operation of a mine. Other than
through conventional and typical exploration methods and procedures, we have no additional way to evaluate the likelihood of whether
our mineral properties contain any mineral reserve or, if they do that they will be operated successfully. We anticipate that we will
continue to incur operating costs without realizing any revenues (from exploration) during the period when we are exploring our
properties.
During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, we (the parent company) had losses of $5,997,234 in connection with the maintenance
and exploration of our mineral properties and the operation of our exploration business. We therefore expect to continue to incur
significant losses into the foreseeable future. We recognize that if we are unable to generate significant revenues from mining operations
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and dispositions of our properties, we will not be able to earn profits or continue operations. At this early stage of our operation, we also
expect to face the risks, uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies at the start up stage of their business
development. We cannot be sure that we will be successful in addressing these risks and uncertainties and our failure to do so could have
a materially adverse effect on our financial condition. There is no history upon which to base any assumption as to the likelihood that we
will prove successful and we can provide investors with no assurance that we will generate any operating revenues or ever achieve
profitable operations.
Investors’ interests in our Company will be diluted and investors may suffer dilution in their net book value per share if we issue
additional employee/director/consultant options or if we sell additional shares to finance our operations.
We have not generated revenue from exploration since the commencement of our exploration stage in January 2004. However our
business model includes our revenue generating and wholly owned drilling services subsidiaries. In order to further expand our company
and objectives above that provided through the anticipated revenues of our revenue producing subsidiaries, any additional growth and/or
expanded exploration activity may need to be financed through sale of and issuance of additional shares. Furthermore, to finance any
acquisition activity, should that activity be properly approved, and depending on the outcome of our exploration programs, we may also
need to issue additional shares to finance future acquisitions, growth and/or additional exploration programs of any or all of our projects
or to acquire additional properties. We may also in the future grant to some or all of our directors, officers, insiders, and key employees
options to purchase our common shares as non-cash incentives. The issuance of any equity securities could, and the issuance of any
additional shares will, cause our existing shareholders to experience dilution of their ownership interests.
If we issue additional shares or decide to enter into joint ventures with other parties in order to raise financing through the sale of equity
securities, investors' interests in our Company will be diluted and investors may suffer dilution in their net book value per share
depending on the price at which such securities are sold. As of the date of the filing of this report there are also outstanding 1,697,938
common share purchase warrants (exercisable into 1,697,938 shares of common stock), options granted that are exercisable into
6,006,499 common shares and debt convertible into 3,713,063 common shares. If all of these were exercised or converted, these would
represent approximately 22% of our issued and outstanding shares. If all of these warrants and options are exercised and the underlying
shares are issued, such issuance will cause a reduction in the proportionate ownership and voting power of all other shareholders. The
dilution may result in a decline in the market price of our shares.
Recent market events and conditions, including disruptions in the U.S. and international credit markets and other financial systems
and the deterioration of the U.S. and global economic conditions, could, among other things, impede access to capital or increase the
cost of capital, which would have an adverse effect on our ability to fund our working capital and other capital requirements.
Throughout 2009, the U.S. credit markets have continued to experience serious disruption due to a deterioration in residential property
values, defaults and delinquencies in the residential mortgage market (particularly, subprime and non-prime mortgages) and a decline in
the credit quality of mortgage backed securities that occurred throughout 2008 and into 2009. These conditions have continued to create
a loss of confidence in the broader U.S. and global credit and financial markets and there remains a climate of greater volatility, less
liquidity, widening of credit spreads, a lack of price transparency, increased credit losses and tighter credit conditions. Concerns about
the general condition of the capital markets, financial instruments, banks, investment banks, insurers and other financial institutions
continue to affect the broader credit markets and stock markets. While there has been some improvement in recent months, we expect
these conditions to persist into the near future.
These unprecedented disruptions in the current credit and financial markets have had a significant material adverse impact on a number of
financial institutions and have limited access to capital and credit for many companies. These disruptions could, among other things,
make it more difficult for us to obtain, or increase our cost of obtaining, capital and financing for our operations. Our access to additional
capital may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.
Dividend Record
We have no dividend record. We have not paid dividends on our common shares since incorporation and do not anticipate doing so in the
foreseeable future.
Conflicts of Interest
Certain of our officers and directors may be or become associated with other businesses, including natural resource companies that
acquire interests in mineral properties. Such associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from time to time. Our directors are
required by Delaware Corporation law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests and to disclose any interest,
which they may have in any of our projects or opportunities. In general, if a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the board of
directors, any director in a conflict will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such matter or, if he does vote, his vote will not be
counted.
We have not adopted any separate formal corporate policy regarding conflicts of interest; however other corporate governance measures
have been adopted, such as creating a directors’ audit committee requiring independent directors. Additionally, our Code of Ethics does
address areas of possible conflicts of interest. As of the date of filing of this report, we had three independent directors on our board of
directors (Jim Moore, Vance Thornsberry and Eric Klepfer). In January 2008, we formed three committees to ensure our compliance
with the requirements of the NYSE Amex. We established an independent audit committee consisting of three independent directors, all
of whom were determined to be “financially literate” and one of whom was designated as the “financial expert”. We also formed a
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compensation committee and a corporate governance and nominating committee, both of which are comprised entirely of independent
directors. At this time, we feel that these committees and our Code of Ethics provide sufficient corporate governance for our purposes
and will meet the specific requirements of the NYSE Amex.
Dependence on Key Management Employees
The nature of both sides of our business, our ability to continue our exploration and development activities and to develop a competitive
edge in the marketplace depends, in large part, on our ability to attract and maintain qualified key management personnel. Competition
for such personnel is intense, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to attract and retain such personnel. Our development
now and in the future will depend on the efforts of key management figures, such as Randal Hardy, Paul Dircksen, Craig Crowell, Martin
Lanphere or Paul Elloway. The loss of any of these key people could have a material adverse effect on our business. In this regard, we
have attempted to reduce the risk associated with the loss of key personnel and have obtained directors and officers insurance coverage.
In addition, we have expanded the provisions of our equity incentive plan so that we can provide incentives for our key personnel.
Certain Risks Associated with Operation of Our Wholly Owned Subsidiary, Timberline Drilling, Incorporated.
Our subsidiary derives all of its revenues from companies in the mining exploration and production industry, a historically cyclical
industry.
Our subsidiary derives all its revenues from companies in the mining exploration and production industry, a historically cyclical industry.
Any prolonged reduction in the overall level of exploration and development activities, can adversely impact our subsidiary in many ways
by negatively affecting:

•
•
•
•
•

Its revenues, cash flows and profitability;
Its ability to maintain or increase our borrowing capacity;
Its ability to obtain additional capital to finance our business and make acquisitions, and the cost of that capital;
Its ability to retain skilled drilling personnel whom we would need in the event of an upturn in the demand for
our services; and
the fair market value of its rig fleet.

Timberline Drilling may be unable to attract and retain qualified, skilled employees necessary to operate its business.
Timberline Drilling’s success depends in large part on its ability to attract and retain skilled and qualified personnel. The inability of
Timberline Drilling officers and management to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees could impair the ability
to manage and maintain our business. Drilling and drilling related work requires skilled employees who can perform physically
demanding work. Shortages of qualified personnel are occurring in this industry. As a result of the volatility of the drilling industry and
the demanding nature of the work, potential employees may choose to pursue employment in fields that offer a more desirable work
environment at wage rates that are competitive with ours. If Timberline Drilling should suffer any material loss of personnel to
competitors or management is unable to employ additional or replacement personnel with the requisite level of training and experience to
adequately operate its equipment, its operations could be materially and adversely affected. With a reduced pool of workers, it is possible
that it will have to raise wage rates to attract workers from other fields and to retain its current employees. If Timberline Drilling is not
able to increase its service rates to its customers to compensate for wage-rate increases, its profitability and other results of operations
may be adversely affected.
Shortages in equipment and supplies could limit Timberline Drilling’s drilling operations and jeopardize its relations with customers.
The materials and supplies Timberline Drilling uses in its drilling operations include fuels to operate our drilling equipment, drilling mud,
drill pipe, drill collars, drill bits and cement. Shortages in equipment supplies could limit its drilling operations and jeopardize its relations
with customers. Timberline Drilling does not rely on a single source of supply for any of these items. From time to time there have been
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies during periods of high demand, which we believe could reoccur. Shortages could result in
increased prices for drilling equipment or supplies that Timberline Drilling may be unable to pass on to customers. In addition, during
periods of shortages, the delivery times for equipment and supplies can be substantially longer. Any significant delays in its obtaining
drilling equipment or supplies could limit drilling operations and jeopardize our relations with customers. In addition, shortages of
drilling equipment or supplies could delay and adversely affect Timberline Drilling’s ability to obtain new contracts for its drills, which
could negatively impact its revenues and profitability.
The mining services industry is a competitive industry.
Contract drilling is a highly competitive industry, where numerous competitors tender bids for contracts. Timberline Drilling’s ongoing
ability to continue to secure contracts at a profitable level cannot be assured.
Cyclical downturns in the mining industry could negatively impact Timberline Drilling’s business.
The most significant operating risk is the potential downturn in demand for minerals and metals which would directly impact the need for
drilling services. To mitigate this risk the Timberline Drilling is exploiting its competitive advantage in underground drilling.
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As the mining cycle lengthens and activity levels increase, the requirement for working capital, particularly accounts receivable and
inventory, grows. Accounts receivable levels from junior mining companies typically increase. Junior mining companies are heavily
dependent on the capital markets and any change in outlook of the mining sector, or lack of success of their exploration activities, can
quickly affect their ability to carry on drilling programs. Timberline Drilling manages this risk by closely monitoring accounts receivable
aging and the activity of junior mining companies in the capital markets. Deposits and letters of credit are required in some instances.
Levels of inventory increase from increased revenue activity and, potentially, an increase in activity in remote locations. In the event of a
sudden downturn Timberline Drilling may be exposed to inventory carrying costs and possible obsolescence. Furthermore it may be
difficult and costly to relocate this inventory to other regions. In order to minimize exposure to this risk, Timberline Drilling works
closely with its customers to anticipate and plan for scheduled reductions in their drilling programs.
Timberline Drilling’s operations in foreign countries expose us to a variety of political and business risks.
Timberline Drilling has operations in Mexico. With this comes the risk of dealing in a variety of business and political jurisdictions. The
risks include, but are not limited to, political instability and violence, terrorism, military repression, extreme fluctuations in currency
exchange rates, labor unrest, changing fiscal regions, changes to royalty and tax regions, uncertainty regarding enforceability of
contractual rights and judgments, and high rates of inflation. Changes in resource development or investment policies or shifts in political
attitude in Mexico may adversely affect our business. Operations may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with
respect to restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, maintenance of claims,
environmental legislation, land use, land claims of local people, water use and mine safety. The effect of these factors cannot be
predicted.
The availability of an adequate workforce cannot be guaranteed and may affect our ability to timely and profitably fulfill our
contracts.
From time to time our industry has experienced a shortage of qualified drillers. The industry has gone through downturns that saw many
qualified drillers move to other industries. The demand for similar skilled workers in the mining, oil and gas and construction industries
also adds to the shortage of qualified people for the drilling services business.
Timberline Drilling has implemented a number of initiatives to retain existing employees and attract new employees, but cannot
guarantee that an adequate workforce will be available in the future to meet Timberline Drilling’s needs.
Reliance on key accounts.
Timberline Drilling has a number of accounts that make up the majority of overall revenue and gross profits. When a contract expires or
is terminated there is no guarantee that Timberline Drilling has sufficient replacement contracts. Timberline Drilling continues to work
with its existing client base and is actively pursuing new clients in order to minimize exposure in this area.
Fluctuations in business costs may affect the profitability of long term contracts.
Timberline Drilling may enter into long term contracts with customers at fixed prices. Timberline Drilling’s expenses may vary
significantly over a contract period due to fluctuations in the cost of labor, and materials and equipment, consequently creating variations
in the profitability of these contracts with fixed prices. Timberline Drilling mitigates this risk by anticipating an escalation in costs when
bidding on projects or providing for cost escalation in the contract. However, significant price fluctuations without warning could
negatively impact Timberline Drilling’s margins.
Extreme weather conditions in certain areas in which Timberline Drilling operates could impact its operations.
Timberline Drilling has operations in the western United States that are subject to extreme weather conditions which can have a
significant impact on its operations. In addition, natural and other disasters could have an adverse impact on Timberline Drilling’s
operations.
Currency fluctuations.
The majority of Timberline Drilling’s business is conducted in United States dollars. Timberline Drilling has operations in Mexico and
may at times receive payments in foreign currency. This may negatively impact a project’s profitability due to currency exchange
volatility. Margin performance however is less affected by currency fluctuations as a large portion of costs are typically in the same
currency as revenues. In order to reduce its exposure to foreign exchange risks Timberline Drilling contracts primarily in U.S. dollars.
We have been assessed penalties for payroll taxes at Timberline Drilling for the late payment of payroll taxes from the period of
October 1, 2007 through May 15, 2008.
We have received notice from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that Timberline Drilling has been assessed late filing penalties for
payroll taxes not paid on a timely basis during the period from October 1, 2007 through May 15, 2008. We have confirmed that the IRS
has now assessed all penalties for the late payment of payroll taxes for all quarterly periods prior to December 31, 2008 and no additional
penalties will be assessed against Timberline Drilling relating to unpaid payroll taxes. We have made timely payments on all payroll
taxes since May 15, 2008 and have been paying down the unpaid balance of penalties and interest by $50,000 per month from August
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2008 through February 2009 and $10,000 per month from April through November 2009, with monthly payments to continue until the
outstanding balance is repaid.
We have negotiated tacit approval to a payment plan with the IRS relating to the balance of approximately $420,000 in interest and
penalties owed by Timberline Drilling on the late payment of payroll taxes. Currently, Timberline Drilling’s assets are subject to a tax
lien until all interest and penalties assessed by the IRS are satisfied. If we fail to comply with the negotiated payment plan or are
otherwise unable to pay the interest and penalties owed to the IRS, the IRS could force the sale of certain assets of Timberline Drilling to
satisfy the interest and penalties due.
Risks Associated With Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been volatile and your investment in our common stock could suffer a decline in value.
Our common stock is traded on the NYSE Amex. The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a
number of factors, some of which are beyond our control. These factors include price fluctuations of precious metals, government
regulations, disputes regarding mining claims, broad stock market fluctuations and economic conditions in the United States.
Because we do not intend to pay any dividends on our common shares, investors seeking dividend income or liquidity should not
purchase our shares.
We do not currently anticipate declaring and paying dividends to our shareholders in the near future. It is our current intention to apply
net earnings, if any, in the foreseeable future to increasing our working capital. Prospective investors seeking or needing dividend income
or liquidity should, therefore, not purchase our common stock. While our wholly owned drilling subsidiary provides revenues, we
currently have no revenues and a history of losses from our exploration activity, so there can be no assurance that we will ever have
sufficient earnings to declare and pay dividends to the holders of our shares, and in any event, a decision to declare and pay dividends is
at the sole discretion of our board of directors, who currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common shares for the
foreseeable future.
We may lose our listing on the NYSE Amex and your investment in our common stock could suffer a decline in value.
On February 13, 2009, we received a notice from the NYSE Amex indicating that we were not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(ii) of
the NYSE Amex Company Guide (which we refer to as the “Company Guide”) due to our stockholders’ equity being less than
$4,000,000 and our having losses from continuing operations and net losses in three of our four most recent fiscal years and Section
1003(a)(iii) of the Company Guide due to our stockholders’ equity being less than $6,000,000 and our having losses from continuing
operations and net losses in our five most recent fiscal years. Therefore we have become subject to Section 1009 of the Company Guide
regarding continued listing evaluations.
In order to maintain our NYSE Amex listing, we were required to submit a plan of compliance to the NYSE Amex by March 13, 2009
(which we refer to as the Plan), addressing how we intend to regain compliance with Sections 1003(a)(ii) and 1003(a)(iii) of the Company
Guide within a maximum of 18 months (which we refer to as the Plan Period). We filed the Plan with the NYSE Amex on March 13,
2009. The NYSE Amex Corporate Compliance Department management evaluated the Plan, and on May 4, 2009 we were informed that
the Plan was accepted by the NYSE Amex and our Plan Period will end on August 13, 2010. Although the Plan was accepted and we are
able to continue our listing during the Plan Period, we will be subject to periodic review to determine whether we are making progress
consistent with the Plan. If we are not in compliance with the continued listing standards at the conclusion of the Plan Period or do not
make progress consistent with the Plan during the Plan Period, we may become subject to delisting proceedings in accordance with
Section 1010 and Part 12 of the Company Guide.
We can provide no assurance that we will be able to meet all the requirements of the Plan during the Plan Period. If we become subject to
delisting proceedings and/or our common stock is delisted from the NYSE Amex our common stock could suffer from decreased liquidity
and your investment in our common stock could decrease in value.
Shares Eligible for Sale Could Depress the Market for Common Stock
Of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock, a large majority of those shares are “restricted securities”. In general, Rule 144 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (which we refer to as the Securities Act), indicates that a person is entitled to sell restricted shares
into the public market if at least six months has passed since the purchase of such shares from the issuer of an affiliate of an issuer,
subject to the satisfaction of certain other conditions. A significant number of the “restricted” shares of our common stock outstanding
were purchased more than six months ago. Accordingly, those shares are eligible for sale into the public market. Along with this
registration statement, we have filed resale registration statements with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form S-1/A that
were declared effective on October 16, 2008 and August 7, 2009, respectively, as well as on Form S-3 that was declared effective on
August 24, 2009. These registration statements cover a number of shares issued in private placements and underlying warrants from
some of these placements. Sales of substantial amounts of those restricted or registered shares, or even the perception that such sales
could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our common stock, and could impair our ability to raise capital through an
offering of our equity securities.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not Applicable.
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ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES
Summary of Timberline’s Mineral Exploration Prospects
As of December 2009, Timberline has acquired mineral prospects for exploration in Montana, Nevada and Idaho mainly for target
commodities of gold, silver, zinc and copper. The prospects are held by both patented and unpatented mining claims owned directly by
the Company or through legal agreements conveying exploration and development rights to the Company. Most of our prospects have
had a prior exploration history and this is typical in the mineral exploration industry. Most mineral prospects go through several rounds
of exploration before an economic ore body is discovered and prior work often eliminates targets or points to new ones. Also, prior
operators may have explored under a completely different commodity price structure or technological regime. Mineralization which was
uneconomic in the past may be ore grade at current market prices when extracted and processed with modern technology.
Montana Gold Properties
Butte Highlands Gold Project

In July 2007, Timberline closed its purchase of the Butte Highlands Gold Project. The project is located approximately 15 miles south of
Butte, Montana in Silverbow County. The property covers 1,142 acres consisting of a combination of patented and unpatented mining
claims situated within Sections 31 and 32, Township 1 North, Range 7 West; Sections 5 and 6, Township 1 South, Range 7 West; and
Section 1, Township 1 South, Range 8 West, Montana Principal Meridian. The property can be accessed utilizing motor vehicle via State
Highway 2 and County and US Forest Service maintained, improved surface roads. The project is within a favorable geologic domain
that has hosted several multi-million ounce gold deposits.
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Claim Name(s)

Claim Type

Land
Type

Rights

Ownership

BHC 1 thru BHC 61

Unpatented lode

Federal

mineral

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

MC 1 thru MC 48

Unpatented lode

Federal

mineral

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

J.B. Thompson

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Main Ripple

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Murphy

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Only Chance

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Purchance

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Red Mountain

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Main Chance

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Island

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Atlantic

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Barnard

Patented lode

Private

mineral and surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

Pony Placer

Patented Lode

Private

surface

100 % Timberline Resources Corp.

All of the unpatented claims are exploration lode claims legally located under federal and state guidelines whereas each claim is 600 feet
by 1500 feet encompassing 20 acres. Each claim is clearly marked with a 4 inch by 4 inch post or equivalent tree at each corner and a
location monument is erected along the center line of the long direction of the claim. All BLM maintenance requirements have been met.
All of the private lands within the Butte Highlands property are historic lode and placer claims which were patented through the U.S.
Government patent process. Timberline Resources is responsible for paying yearly BLM maintenance fees on all unpatented mining
claims and Montana State property taxes on all patented lands. All associated taxes and fees are paid up to date as of September 30,
2009. Electricity and water are readily available on the property. If necessary, additional electricity requirements may be met by
augmenting the currently available electrical supply with generator power.
Gold mineralization at Butte Highlands is hosted primarily in lower Paleozoic Wolsey shale with higher-grade mineralization occurring
within the sediments proximal to diorite sills and dikes. Between 1988 and 1996, prior operators Placer Dome, Battle Mountain,
ASARCO, and Orvana Minerals demonstrated the presence of a wide and continuous mineralized zone by drilling 46 core holes (36,835
feet) and 132 reverse-circulation holes (61,338 feet) within the district. The vast majority of this drilling was conducted in the Nevin Hill
area which is included in the Timberline property. Best gold intercepts achieved at Butte Highlands include 49.8 feet of 0.651 ounces per
ton (oz/t) and 11.5 feet of 1.996 oz/t from surface and 31.0 feet of 1.060 oz/t from underground.
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Historic Drilling Highlights (from Surface)

Drill Hole

From
(ft)

To
(ft)

Length
(ft)

Gold
(oz/t)(1)

DDH 88-3

745.0

756.0

11.0

0.110

1,070.0

1,085.0

15.0

0.206

DDH 89-1

1,177.2

1,227.0

49.8

0.651

PD 89-1

1,351.0

1,366.0

15.0

0.340

PD 89-2

1,396.0

1,412.0

16.0

0.135

BH 93-1

885.0

895.0

10.0

0.138

925.0

935.0

10.0

0.319

BH 93-8

1,189.0

1,200.0

11.0

0.131

BH 93-11

758.5

770.0

11.5

0.351

825.0

845.0

20.0

0.114

964.0

978.0

14.0

0.776

BH 93-12

762.5

786.0

23.5

0.548

BH 94-2

1,240.0

1,270.0

30.0

0.214

BH 94-3

1,129.3

1,141.0

11.7

0.255

1,163.4

1,181.0

17.6

0.142

1,312.0

1,325.5

13.5

0.492

1,425.0

1,437.0

12.0

0.276

BH 94-16

1,335.5

1,347.0

11.5

0.165

BH 94-17

1,295.5

1,323.0

27.5

0.268

BH 95-5

1,429.0

1,457.5

28.5

0.338

1,512.5

1,522.5

10.0

0.129

697.0

722.3

25.3

0.153

754.0

779.5

25.5

0.158

837.0

849.0

12.0

0.678

902.0

916.0

14.0

0.114

932.5

944.0

11.5

1.996

BH 96-1

BH 96-5

BH 96-6

BH 96-8

BH 96-9
(1)

1,258.0

1,270.0

12.0

0.142

1,320.0

1,333.0

13.0

0.165

1,222.0

1,233.0

11.0

0.234

1,287.0

1,307.0

20.0

0.212

993.0

1,012.0

19.0

0.133

All values represent either a single interval or were composited using a weighted average based on sample interval length.
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The following table includes highlights from past underground drilling programs conducted in the early-1940s.
Historic Drilling Highlights (from Underground)

Drill Hole

From
(ft)

To
(ft)

Length
(ft)

Gold
(oz/t)(1)

BH 40-23

147.0

157.0

10.0*

0.102

205.0

226.0

21.0

0.230

BH 40-24

142.0

173.0

31.0

1.060

BH 40-34

182.0

192.0

10.0*

0.106

BH 40-35

329.5

339.5

10.0*

0.132

BH 40-41

162.0

181.0

19.0

0.280

BH 40-42

224.0

236.0

12.0

0.180

BH 40-43

237.0

249.0

12.0

1.140

BH 40-46

278.0

288.0

10.0*

0.124

307.0

317.0

10.0*

0.558

330.0

340.0

10.0*

0.160

BH 40-47

236.0

262.0

26.0

0.260

BH 40-48

197.0

207.0

10.0*

0.174

BH 40-49

234.0

244.0

10.0*

0.106

(1)

All values represent either a single interval or were composited using a weighted average based on sample interval length.

*

averaged with 0.025 oz/t dilution to reach 10-foot thickness

In 1997, Orvana Minerals used recent and historic drilling data to prepare a report on the Butte Highlands property. The report provided
a preliminary technical review of feasibility issues, identifying no fatal flaws to mine development. The report also noted that suitable
sites for a mill and tailings pond are present on the property, custom milling at existing nearby facilities was feasible, and access to the
deposit could be achieved with a decline from either of two existing portals.
Since signing the Purchase Agreement for Butte Highlands in May 2007, Timberline has expanded its land position to cover additional
drill targets and has retained Klepfer Mining Services (Eric Klepfer, as affiliate of Klepfer Mining Services, is also a director to
Timberline) to perform the environmental and permitting services necessary to advance the project. Timberline management believes
that there is excellent potential to increase the historic resource estimates at Butte Highlands, both along strike and down-dip, as well as a
realistic opportunity for near-term production.
Timberline purchased the Butte Highlands property in 2007, including 100-percent ownership of mineral rights, from Butte Highlands
Mining Company for $405,000 cash and 108,000 shares of Timberline common stock.
In 2008, Timberline completed the first four holes (totaling 6,757 feet) of its planned 17-hole surface core drilling program before the
early onset of heavy snowfall forced the cessation of exploration activities for the season. Assays have been received for the first three
holes with results confirming known mineralized zones and identifying a new high-grade gold zone to the northwest. The program was
designed to validate and expand the historic estimates, to obtain material for petrographic and metallurgical evaluation, and to assess 3-D
control for planning and permitting the exploration decline and, ultimately, a producing mine.
The most encouraging hole to-date, BH-DDH 08-03, was drilled 100 feet northwest of previously-tested mineralization boundaries. The
hole returned several mineralized gold intervals, including 2.0 feet of 0.62 ounces per ton (oz/t), 37.0 feet of 0.22 oz/t, 5.0 feet of 0.26
oz/t, 9.0 feet of 0.43 oz/t, and 35.0 feet of 0.14 oz/t. These results demonstrate the northwest extension of the Upper, Middle, and Lower
zones, while the latter two intervals comprise a new discovery at depth or a potential offset portion of previously-identified zones. Both
the extension and the discovery have the potential to greatly increase mineralization estimates at Butte Highlands.
Results for BH-DDH 08-02, intended to test a narrow gold zone proximal to a diorite dike, were also positive and encouraging. In
addition to a 7.2-foot interval grading 0.11 oz/t gold within typical Wolsey shale host rock, the hole also intercepted a 267-foot zone of
mineralized diorite , including 25.0 feet grading 0.10 oz/t gold. It is important to note that the identification of slightly higher-grade
diorite material, or the delineation of similarly wide zones of lower-grade material with underground bulk mining potential, could have a
significant positive impact on mineralization estimates as they do not currently include diorite-hosted gold. Additional testing of diorite
targets will be considered for future drilling phases, most likely from underground.
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2008 Butte Highlands Drilling Highlights

(1)

Drill Hole

From
(ft)

To
(ft)

Length
(ft)

Gold
(oz/t)(1)

BH-DDH 08-01

1335.6

1337.0

1.4

0.27

BH-DDH 08-02

1171.4

1178.6

7.2

0.11

Including

1326.0

1351.0

25.0

0.10

BH-DDH 08-03

1207.0

1209.0

2.0

0.62

1242.0

1279.0

37.0

0.22

Including

1242.0

1260.0

18.0

0.24

Including

1272.7

1279.0

6.3

0.41

1294.0

1299.0

5.0

0.26

1404.0

1409.0

5.0

0.11

NW Extension

1560.2

1569.2

9.0

0.43

NW Extension

1580.0

1615.0

35.0

0.14

All values represent either a single interval or were composited using a weighted average based on sample interval length.

In October 2008, the Company announced that it had agreed to form a 50/50 joint venture with Small Mine Development (“SMD”) at the
Butte Highlands project. In July 2009, the Company finalized the joint venture agreement with Highland Mining, LLC (an affiliate of
SMD) to create Butte Highlands JV, LLC (“BHJV”). Under terms of the joint venture agreement, Timberline will be carried to
production by Highland Mining, LLC (“Highland”), which will fund all mine development costs and began development in the summer
of 2009. Both Timberline’s and Highland’s 50-percent share of costs will be paid out of proceeds from future mine production.
BHJV has continued the exploration plan and geologic modeling of the Butte Highlands project with Timberline’s assistance. During the
year ended September 30, 2009, a permit to perform additional exploration, consisting of installing an underground exploration ramp to
access mineralization for underground drilling, bulk sampling and metallurgical testing was approved by the State of Montana. Upon
approval, construction of the underground ramp and associated development on the project began in August 2009. Completion of the
underground ramp, underground drilling and bulk sampling will take approximately 12 to 18 months in total. During this time BHJV will
be submitting an application for an Operating Permit with the state of Montana to commence gold mining operations. BHJV will be
conducting or contracting all base line studies to facilitate the permit. The state of Montana has indicated to Timberline that this process
and regulatory approval will take approximately 12 to 18 months. Therefore, Timberline expects to transition directly from exploration to
gold mining operations within the specified time frame.
As of September 30, 2009 BHJV has completed four drill holes of a five hole core drill program totaling 5,759 feet of drilling. Assays for
the first three holes have been received. The first three drill holes were drilled to the northwest of the main mineralized body in the hopes
of extending mineralization in that area. The first hole (BHDDH09-01) encountered mineralization before abruptly intersecting an
unexpected fault which removed the favorable Wolsey Formation. The second and third holes also encountered an additional fault and no
mineralization was encountered in these two holes. The fourth hole (BHDDH09-04) was drilled in the central part of the mineralized area
with the intention of infill drilling near known mineralized intercepts. The hole encountered a significant amount of skarn mineralization
although geologically it appears it could be similar to lower grade material encountered in previous holes.
BHJV also initiated a Hydrologic Reverse Circulation Drill program during the year ended September 30, 2009. Three holes have been
completed for a total of 2,300 feet. Data collected during this program will be used to model the hydrologic character of the mineralized
area. As of September 30, 2009 the Company has incurred exploration costs to date of approximately $750,000. Ongoing exploration
costs are being incurred by BHJV.
Highland, our 50/50 joint venture partner on the project, will carry all costs incurred on the project until mining operations commence.
The Company expects that the total costs incurred on the project to reach this milestone will be between $12 and $18 million.
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Nevada Gold Properties
The East Camp Douglas Prospect
In August 2006, Timberline exercised its option to lease the East Camp Douglas Project, along the prolific Walker Lane Mineral Belt in
south-central Nevada. It is approximately four miles southwest of the town of Mina in Mineral County, Nevada. The property is
comprised of 115 unpatented mining claims (totaling 2,300 acres) and represents a “district-scale” project with multiple targets of lowsulphidation quartz-adularia and high-sulphidation quartz-alunite gold-silver mineralization. In August 2007, the Company exercised its
option to lease an additional 8 unpatented claims (totaling 155 acres).
The property is structurally well-located at the intersection of the northwest trending Walker Lane Structural Belt (Rawhide, Paradise
Peak, Tonopah, and Goldfield mines) and the regional west-northwest trending Cerro Duro Lineament (Bodie, Aurora, and Borealis
mines). The Miocene age gold-silver mineralization at East Camp Douglas is related to an extensive intermediate to felsic eruptive
volcanic center including early andesitic and later dacitic flows and dikes.
During the year ended September 30, 2009 the Company determined that, despite the property’s geologic potential, it would continue to
hold only the 8 unpatented claims acquired in 2007, and terminated the lease on the other 115 unpatented claims. We have written down
$40,000 in associated capital costs of the project to reflect this termination.
As of September 30, 2009, Timberline does not consider the East Camp Douglas prospect to be a material property. No future
expenditures are planned on the prospect at this time.
Idaho Copper-Silver Property
The Snowstorm Prospect
The Snowstorm Project is located in north Idaho’s “Silver Valley” and features the Snowstorm Mine, a historic operation that produced
800,000 tons of ore averaging 4-percent copper and 6 ounces per ton (oz/t) silver. Snowstorm mineralization occurred as disseminated
copper and silver found in the same Revett Formation quartzites that host the Troy, Rock Creek, and Montanore deposits on the Montana
Copper Sulfide Belt, but was of a much higher grade. The Snowstorm property, which is 2 miles northeast of the Lucky Friday Mine
near Mullan in Shoshone County, Idaho, lies in the southwest corner of the Montana Copper Sulfide Belt where it overlaps the northeast
corner of the Coeur d'Alene Mining District. Timberline controls 100-percent of the Snowstorm Project.
Exploration work has been conducted in the project area for decades. U.S. Borax conducted a program focusing on the nearby Military
Gulch area during the 1980s. Later, Silver Mountain Lead Mines, The Bunker Hill Company, and Hecla held the project area and also
conducted significant exploration. Timberline has obtained access to most of this data, which represents hundreds of thousands of dollars
worth of work. This data was reviewed and assembled to aid in the development of the 2005 exploration program.
In late-2005, Timberline completed a Phase I exploration program at Snowstorm, designed as an initial evaluation of the potential for
copper-silver mineralization in Upper Revett quartzite within the large project area. The program consisted of 10 core holes totaling
4,104 feet, drilled at nine widely-spaced sites along the projected mineralized horizon at depths ranging from 149 to 712 feet.
Mineralization was found to occur within the lower unit of the Upper Revett quartzite, with all ten drill holes encountering the quartzite in
thicknesses varying from 37 to 57 feet. Although the continuity of the stratigraphy and the mineralized horizon was demonstrated, bulk
grades across the horizon were sub-economic, with copper values typically less than 0.3-percent and silver values typically less than 0.25
oz/t. Much of the mineralization in the shallower intercepts was oxidized with leaching contributing to the lower grades. In the sulfide
zones, chalcopyrite was the predominate sulfide rather than bornite or chalcocite. Results of the drilling were reported in the Company’s
8-K report dated January 3, 2006.
Timberline submitted a technical report on the Phase I exploration program at Snowstorm, along with a Phase II exploration proposal, to
Hecla as required by an earn-in agreement. Hecla has subsequently elected not to participate in future expenditures at Snowstorm and
thus retains a 4-percent net smelter returns (NSR) royalty on any future production from the project. Timberline now controls 100percent of the Snowstorm prospect.
The mineralized horizon at the Snowstorm Mine was discovered in outcrop and subsequently developed with four adits, each driven at
lower elevations to access its nearly vertical structure. The horizon appears to have been offset by a structure near the lowest adit and
little systematic exploration has been conducted for this lower portion of the ore body. No stratabound copper-silver deposit has since
been discovered that approached the grades of the Snowstorm.
In May 2005, the Company signed a Mineral Lease Agreement with Snowshoe Mining Co. for additional ground adjacent to the
Snowstorm project area. The property subject to the Snowshoe Agreement includes the patented claims of Mineral Survey 2224,
encompassing an area of approximately 76 acres, just west of the Snowstorm claims. The Agreement calls for an initial payment of
$8,000, with annual payments increasing to $15,000 by May 2009, and remaining at that level thereafter. The Company will pay a 3percent NSR royalty on any production from the Snowshoe property, and will perform a minimum of $10,000 worth of exploration work
upon it annually. The work may be performed on or for the benefit of the Snowshoe claims. Hecla previously elected to include the
Snowshoe claims within the area of interest, and will consequently receive a 1-percent NSR royalty on any production from the
Snowshoe property.
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As of September 30, 2009, Timberline does not consider the Snowstorm prospect to be a material property. No material future
expenditures are planned on the prospect at this time.
Idaho Gold Property
The Spencer Prospect
The Spencer prospect covers 640 acres on the western end of the Kilgore-Spencer Trend, a northeast-trending belt of rhyolite volcanics
known to host epithermal gold-silver mineralization, just south of a privately-held opal mine about nine miles northeast of near the town
of Spencer, Idaho. The Company believes that the property has the potential to host both open-pit and underground gold deposits.
The geochemistry at Spencer is consistent with the upper levels of an epithermal system. Although there was considerable interest in the
region during the 1980s and 1990s, the Spencer property has never been drill tested.
The Company has performed a phase-one exploration program consisting of reconnaissance-scale geological mapping along with rock
chip and soil geochemical sampling. Future work may include more detailed mapping and sampling, and possibly a geophysical survey
to help define drill targets.
The Spencer Prospect is held by State of Idaho Department of Lands Mineral Lease No. 9347. The Mineral Lease was issued to a prior
Director of Timberline, who assigned it to the Company for consideration of common stock and approximately $3,000 in expenses.
The prospect is located in Section 16, Township 12 North, Range 37 East, in Clark County, Idaho. The lease covers an area of
approximately 640 acres and calls for annual payments to the State of Idaho of $640. Royalties on production of previous metals are 5percent of the gross receipts from the sale of minerals produced, less reasonable transportation, smelting and treatment costs.
As of September 30, 2009, Timberline does not consider the Spenser prospect to be a material property. No future expenditures are
planned on the prospect at this time.
Montana Copper-Silver Properties
The Minton Pass, East Bull, Standard Creek, Lucky Luke, Clear Peak and Copper Rock Prospects
In 2004, Timberline acquired four properties on the Montana Copper Sulfide Belt in Lincoln and Sanders counties. All four properties
are interpreted as sediment-hosted copper-silver occurrences located in the Revett Formation of the Montana Copper-Silver Belt and are
considered early-stage exploration prospects. The properties were held by U.S. Borax and its successor company, Kennecott Exploration,
during the 1980s and early-1990s. Timberline has acquired the mapping and sampling data from the U.S. Borax program. There has
been no documented activity in these areas since 1992.
In the 1970s and 1980s, major exploration companies identified several copper-silver occurrences within the Montana Copper Sulfide
Belt, and successfully outlined three world-class ore bodies, including Troy, Rock Creek and Montanore. These quartzite-hosted deposits
are characterized by their lateral extensive size and continuity of mineralization. The Troy Mine produced 390 million pounds of copper
and 44 million ounces of silver from 1981 to 1993, and the undeveloped Rock Creek deposit is reported to contain 137 million tons of ore
averaging 0.72-percent copper and 1.67 oz/t silver. Many of the copper-silver occurrences, including those held by the Company, were
evaluated in only a cursory manner during previous exploration.
Metasedimentary rocks of the Precambrian Belt Supergroup underlie the area. Outcropping rocks consist of a sequence of argillites,
siltstones, and quartzites representing the basal portion of the Wallace, St. Regis, and Revett formations, along with the upper portion of
the Burke Formation. Locally, these rocks strike northwest with a shallow westerly dip. Major faulting associated with the
mineralization is generally north-northwest. Disseminated bornite with secondary chrysocolla and malachite is reported to occur within a
specific quartzite horizon of the Revett Formation.
In 2008, Timberline acquired two additional prospects in the same favorable mineralized geology, Clear Peak and Copper Rock. These
properties have the same geologic description as the properties described above. Both Clear Peak and Copper Rock were previously
explored by Asarco Exploration Company, Inc.
All claims were staked by Timberline and are not subject to any underlying production royalty. All of these claims have been filed with
the BLM.
The State of Montana has banned the use of cyanide in mining activities within the state. Cyanide is used in the mining of gold. Since
Timberline’s Montana prospects are for silver and copper only, this ban does not affect our plans for this property in Montana.
As of September 30, 2009, Timberline does not consider any of the Minton Pass, East Bull, Standard Creek, Lucky Luke, Clear Peak or
Copper Rock prospects to be material properties. No future expenditures are planned on the prospects at this time.
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Overview of Regulatory, Economic and Environmental Issues
Hard rock mining and drilling in the United States is a closely regulated industrial activity. Mining and drilling operations are subject to
review and approval by a wide variety of agencies at the federal, state and local level. Each level of government requires applications for
permits to conduct operations. The approval process always involves consideration of many issues including but not limited to air
pollution, water use and discharge, noise issues, and wildlife impacts. Mining operations always involve preparation of an environmental
impact statement that examines the probable effect of the proposed site development. Federal agencies that may be involved include: The
U.S. Forest Service (USFS), Bureau of Land Management (BLM), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), National Institute for
Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) and the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS).
Individual states also have various environmental regulatory bodies, such as Departments of Ecology and so on. Local authorities,
usually counties, also have control over mining activity. An example of such regulation is the State of Montana’s recent ban on the use of
cyanide in mining activities within the state. Cyanide is used in the mining of gold. However, since some of our prospects in Montana
are for silver and copper this ban does not affect those properties. Our Butte Highlands project in Montana is partially on patented ground
and is an underground gold prospect. It is anticipated that any production from this property would be shipped to nearby mills for
processing as opposed to building our own mills and processing facilities, thus this ban would not affect our plans in Montana. The
Elkhorn project is nearby and similar to Butte Highlands and is following a similar plan with public support. We are not aware of any
other states that plan to enact similar legislation.
Gold, silver and copper are mined in a wide variety of ways, both in open pit and underground mines. Open pit mines require the gold
deposit to be relatively close to the surface. These deposits tend to be low grade (such as 0.01-0.03 ounces per ton gold) and are mined
using large, costly earth moving equipment, usually at very high tonnages per day.
Open pit operations for gold usually involve heap leaching as a metallurgical method to remove the gold. Heap leaching involves
stacking the ore on pads which are lined with an impenetrable surface, then sprinkling the gold with a weak cyanide solution to extract the
gold. The particle impregnated solution is collected and the gold recovered through further processing.
Underground metal mines generally involve higher grade ore bodies. Less tonnage is mined underground, and generally the higher grade
ore is processed in a mill or other refining facility. This process results in the accumulation of waste by-products from the washing of the
ground ore. Mills require associated tailings ponds to capture waste by-products and treat water used in the milling process.
Capital costs for mine, mill and tailings pond construction can easily run into the hundreds of millions of dollars. These costs are factored
into the profitability of a mining operation. Metal mining is sensitive to both cost considerations and to the value of the metal produced.
Metals prices are set on a world-wide market and are not controlled by the operators of the mine. Changes in currency values or
exchange rates can also impact metals prices. Thus changes in metals prices or operating costs can have a huge impact on the economic
viability of a mining operation.
Environmental protection and remediation is an increasingly important part of mineral economics. In some cases, particularly in
Montana, with its concern for its grizzly bear population, mining companies have been required to acquire and donate additional land to
serve as a substitute habitat for this endangered species.
Estimated future costs of reclamation or restoration of mined land are based principally on legal and regulatory requirements.
Reclamation of affected areas after mining operations may cost millions of dollars. Often governmental permitting agencies are requiring
multi-million dollar bonds from mining companies prior to granting permits, to insure that reclamation takes place. All environmental
mitigation tends to decrease profitability of the mining operation, but these expenses are recognized as a cost of doing business by
modern mining and exploration companies.
Mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the protection of the environment. These laws and
regulations are continually changing and are generally becoming more restrictive. We conduct our operations so as to protect the public
health and environment and believe our operations are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations in all material respects. We
have made, and expect to make in the future, expenditures to comply with such laws and regulations, but cannot predict the full amount of
such future expenditures.
Every mining activity has an environmental impact. In order for a proposed mining project to be granted the required governmental
permits, mining companies are required to present proposed plans for mitigating this impact. In the United States, where our properties
are located, no mine can operate without obtaining a number of permits. These permits address the social, economic, and environmental
impacts of the operation and include numerous opportunities for public involvement and comment.
We intend to focus on exploration and discovery of mineral resources, not their production. If we are successful, the ore bodies
discovered will be attractive to production companies. The mining industry is, like agriculture, a fundamental component of modern
industrial society, and minerals of all sorts are needed to maintain our way of life. If we are successful in finding an attractive ore body,
be it gold, silver or copper, sufficient value will be created to reward the Company’s shareholders and allow for all production and
reclamation expenses to be paid by the actual producer to whom we convey, assign or joint venture the project.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
On January 16, 2009, the Company filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of Idaho (the “Court”) against
American Drilling, LLC, American Drilling Corporation (along with American Drilling, LLC referred to as “American Drilling”), and
Steven Elloway ("Elloway"). Timberline Drilling alleged that when Elloway left employment with the Company he immediately started
American Drilling, and that Elloway and American Drilling have subsequently violated Elloway's Supplemental Income Agreement with
Timberline Drilling, which restricted his post-termination competitive activities. Timberline Drilling also asserted that Elloway and
American Drilling have converted confidential and proprietary Timberline Drilling information and documents, misappropriated trade
secrets, tortiously and negligently interfered with Timberline Drilling's contractual relations with its business relationships and its
prospective economic advantage, and that Elloway breached fiduciary duties to Timberline Drilling and unjustly enriched himself. In
addition to seeking monetary damages, Timberline Drilling asked the Court to issue an injunction to prohibit future improper competition
or use of Timberline Drilling trade secrets by Elloway or American Drilling.
A temporary restraining order was issued and arguments regarding the entry of a preliminary injunction were heard by the Court on
February 11, 2009. On March 2, 2009, the Court stated that Timberline Drilling had demonstrated likelihood of success at trial on the
merits, therefore a preliminary injunction was not issued due to no showing of irreparable harm. The Court also stated that given the
probable success of Timberline Drilling at trial, Timberline Drilling would have a claim for damages related to its loss of business
extending to the trial date of July 11, 2010. We are currently in the discovery phase and expect that Timberline Drilling will prevail at
trial. Rather than incur elevated legal costs at this time, and given that damages are ongoing and expected to continue, we plan to
accelerate our legal expenditures and preparations closer to the trial date.
No director, officer or affiliate of Timberline and no owner of record or beneficial owner of more than 5% of our securities or any
associate of any such director, officer or security holder is a party adverse to Timberline or has a material interest adverse to Timberline
in reference to pending litigation.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
Our common stock was listed on the NYSE Amex on May 12, 2008 and is quoted under the trading symbol “TLR”. The high and low
sale prices for our common stock as quoted on the NYSE Amex and the OTCBB were as follows:
Period(1)

High

Low

2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter(3)

$1.50
$0.53
$0.87
$1.68

$0.19
$0.22
$0.31
$0.67

2008
First Quarter
Second Quarter(2)
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$4.35
$4.40
$2.99
$1.50

$2.50
$2.65
$0.80
$0.23

2007
Fourth Quarter

$5.15

$3.03

(1)
(2)
(3)

Quarters indicate calendar year quarters.
Our common stock began trading on the NYSE Amex on May 12, 2008
Through December 7, 2009

The above quotations for the OTCBB reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commission and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions.
On December 7, 2009, the closing sale price for our common stock was $1.29 on the NYSE Amex.
As of December 7, 2009, we had 40,313,181 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, held by approximately 765 registered
shareholders. In many cases, shares are registered through intermediaries, making the precise number of shareholders difficult to obtain.
On February 13, 2009, we received a notice from the NYSE Amex indicating that we were not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(ii) of
the NYSE Amex Company Guide (which we refer to as the “Company Guide”) due to our stockholders’ equity being less than
$4,000,000 and our having losses from continuing operations and net losses in three of its four most recent fiscal years and Section
1003(a)(iii) of the Company Guide due to our stockholders’ equity being less than $6,000,000 and our having losses from continuing
operations and net losses in its five most recent fiscal years. Therefore we have become subject to Section 1009 of the Company Guide
regarding continued listing evaluations.
In order to maintain our NYSE Amex listing, we were required to submit a plan of compliance to the NYSE Amex by March 13, 2009
(which we refer to as the Plan), addressing how we intend to regain compliance with Sections 1003(a)(ii) and 1003(a)(iii) of the Company
Guide within a maximum of 18 months (which we refer to as the Plan Period). We filed the Plan with the NYSE Amex on March 13,
2009. The NYSE Amex Corporate Compliance Department management evaluated the Plan, and on May 4, 2009 we were informed that
the Plan was accepted by the NYSE Amex and our Plan Period will end on August 13, 2010. Although the Plan was accepted and we are
able to continue our listing during the Plan Period, we will be subject to periodic review to determine whether we are making progress
consistent with the Plan. If we are not in compliance with the continued listing standards at the conclusion of the Plan Period or do not
make progress consistent with the Plan during the Plan Period, we may become subject to delisting proceedings in accordance with
Section 1010 and Part 12 of the Company Guide.
Dividend Policy
We anticipate that we will retain any earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development of our business.
Therefore, we do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any further determination to pay cash dividends will be at
the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent on the financial condition, operating results, capital requirements and other
factors that our board deems relevant. We have never declared a dividend.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliates
There were no purchases of our equity securities by us or any of our affiliates during the year ended September 30, 2009.
Stock Incentive Plans
In February 2005, our Board adopted the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan which was approved by a vote of shareholders at our Annual Meeting
of Shareholders on September 23, 2005. This plan authorizes the granting of up to 750,000 non-qualified stock options to Officers,
Directors, and consultants.
On August 31, 2006, our Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Timberline Resources Corporation 2005 Equity Incentive
Plan (the “Amended 2005 Plan”) for the purposes of increasing the total number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant
to Awards granted under the original 2005 Plan from seven-hundred and fifty thousand (750,000) shares to two million (2,750,000)
shares and allowing “Ten Percent Shareholders” (as defined in the Amended 2005 Plan) to participate in the plan on the same basis of any
other participant. The Amended Plan was approved by a vote of shareholders at our Annual Meeting of Shareholders on September 22,
2006.
On August 22, 2008, our shareholders approved a proposal for the increase in the total number of shares of common stock that may be
issued pursuant to awards granted under the original 2005 Plan as previously amended. Following the increase, the plan provides for
7,000,000 shares of common stock for awards under the plan.
Equity Compensation Plans
The following summary information is presented as of September 30, 2009.

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(1)

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants, and rights
(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants, and rights
(b)

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column
(a))
(c)

6,235,168 (1)

$0.92

51,665

6,235,168(1)

$0.92

51,665

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders
TOTAL

(1) In February 2005, our Board adopted the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan which was approved by shareholders on September 23, 2005. This plan
authorizes the granting of up to 750,000 non-qualified 10 year stock options to Officers, Directors and consultants. In August 2006, the Board adopted the
Amended 2005 Equity Incentive Plan which was approved by shareholders on September 22, 2006. This amended plan increases the number of nonqualified 10 year stock options that are authorized to be issued to Officers, Directors and consultants to 2,750,000. On August 22, 2008, our shareholders
approved a proposal for the increase in the total number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to awards granted under the original 2005
Plan as previously amended. Following the increase, the plan provides for 7,000,000 shares of common stock for awards under the plan.

As to the options granted to date, there were 75,000 options exercised during the year ended September 30, 2009. For the year ended
September 30, 2008, no options were exercised.
Sale of Unregistered Securities
During the year ended September 30, 2009, all transactions in which we have offered and sold unregistered securities pursuant to
exemptions under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, have been previously reported on Current Reports on Form 8-K.
On October 16, 2009, warrants to purchase 1,085,944 common shares of the Company were exercised by warrant holders at a price of
$0.50 per common share, for aggregate total proceeds of $542,972. Proceeds from the warrant exercises will be used for general working
capital and to evaluate exploration opportunities.
On November 23, 2009, the Company closed a private placement of units. In the aggregate, the Company placed 3,003,400 units of the
Company at a price of $1.00/unit for gross aggregate proceeds of $3,003,400. Each unit consists of one common share and one-half of
one purchase warrant. Each full warrant will entitle the holder thereof to acquire one additional share of common stock at an exercise
price of $1.50 per share until May 31, 2010 and thereafter at an exercise price of $1.75 per share until November 15, 2011. The net
proceeds of the offering will be used by Timberline for exploration expenditures, working capital and general corporate purposes.
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In connection with the private placement, the Company agreed to pay qualified agents a cash compensation fee in U.S. dollars in an
amount equal to seven percent (7%) of the gross proceeds of the offering received by the Company for units placed by such agents. The
cash compensation fee is equal to $196,238. The agents will also receive 196,238 agents’ warrants, exercisable to acquire common stock
equal in number to seven percent (7%) of the total number of units sold that were placed by the agents.
The shares issued pursuant to the warrant exercises and private placement were not registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (“Securities Act”), or the laws of any state, and are subject to resale restrictions and may not be offered or sold in the United
States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements. In connection with the warrant exercise, the
Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to prepare and file with SEC within 60 days of closing a registration statement under
the Securities Act, and to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such registration statement to be declared effective as soon as is
practicable.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not Applicable.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our financial
statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forwardlooking statements as a result of many factors, including, but not limited to, those set forth under “Risk Factors and Uncertainties” and
elsewhere in this prospectus.
Overview
We commenced our exploration stage in January 2004 with the change in the management of the Company. From January 2004 until
March 2006, we were strictly a mineral exploration company. Beginning with the management appointments of John Swallow and Paul
Dircksen, the addition of Randal Hardy, our acquisition of a drilling services company, and the acquisition of Butte Highlands, we
continue to advance our business plan. Prior to our new business model, the addition of new management, the purchase of Timberline
Drilling (formerly known as Kettle Drilling), and a more active and focused exploration division, the Company had no reported revenues
and accumulated losses.
While 2009 was a very challenging year for the Company, the mining industry and the entire world economy, we are emerging from this
period with what we believe to be a stronger, more focused, mineral exploration and drilling services business. In spite of a dramatic
reduction in revenues from our drilling services business, both in the United States and Mexico, the Company reduced its consolidated net
loss when compared to the previous year. Our U.S. operations were profitable in the two most recent quarters.
The year commenced with the emergence of the credit crisis, global deleveraging and ultimately, a significant global economic recession
that adversely affected the plans of companies large and small – including Timberline. In October 2008, the Company announced
termination of its proposed agreement to acquire Small Mine Development (SMD), a privately-held underground mining and mine
development contractor. For most of the previous year, management had expended considerable effort, focus and expense on the
acquisition process. However, in these unprecedented market conditions, it proved extremely difficult to complete the acquisition of
SMD under acceptable terms. Therefore, we jointly agreed that the unpredictability in the economic climate presented too great of a risk
to the Company and our shareholders.
Instead, the Company announced plans to form a 50/50 joint venture with SMD for the advancement of our Butte Highlands Gold
Project. The Company also announced in October 2008 the completion of a $10 million debt/equity financing to retire an $8 million
bridge loan facility and provide working capital. See the discussion under the section heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis –
Financial Condition and Liquidity” below for a more detailed description of the financing.
In July 2009 the Company finalized the operating agreement for the Butte Highlands Gold Project with Highland Mining, LLC
(“Highland”), an affiliate of SMD. Timberline and Highland agreed that Highland will fund the development of the underground gold
mine at Butte Highlands, and that SMD will perform all development activities to advance the project to production. Under terms of the
agreement, Timberline will be carried to production by Highland, and both Timberline’s and Highland’s 50-percent share of costs will be
paid out of proceeds from future mine production. This agreement resulted in the creation of the Butte Highlands JV, LLC (“BHJV”),
with Timberline and Highland each having a 50-percent interest.
Development for the mine has begun with the cutting of the mine portal following receipt of the company’s exploration permit in August
2009. Timberline and its joint venture partner are now authorized to construct exploration drifts, perform both surface and underground
drilling, and extract a bulk sample. The acreage that may be disturbed under the permit totals approximately 50 acres, including 20 acres
for surface facilities. The plan involves construction of exploration drifts approximately 14 feet wide by 16 feet high and 6,700 feet in
length. The drill program to further define and expand the resource anticipates 120 drill holes from 10-15 drill stations located
throughout the drifts. The drill holes will average 500 feet in length for a total of approximately 60,000 feet of core drilling. The plan
also anticipates collecting a 10,000 ton bulk sample. The underground development, exploration drilling, and bulk sampling is
anticipated to take approximately one year.
It continues to be the opinion of management that projects similar to Butte Highlands are a good fit for the current environment and the
unique qualifications of our people and strategic partners. As a result, the Company has chosen to focus on late-early stage development
and near-term production properties that have similar characteristics to the Butte Highlands Gold Project.
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Management Forecast for 2010: Key Issues, Challenges, and Opportunities
Recap of 2009 Goals and Objectives:
Our goals for 2009 were influenced by the impact of the global economic crisis. We have focused our efforts in our drilling services
businesses mainly on underground drilling for developing or producing companies. While this strategy has allowed us to continue
providing services to our largest customers, we have been and continue to be focused on “right sizing” the operations to fit the current
demand in the industry. There is still work to be done to make our drilling entities as profitable as we feel they have the potential to be.
We have, however, made what we believe is a tremendous amount of progress over the past year in improving operating cash flows,
reducing debt, and attaining profitability even in the face of decreased revenues.
Our mineral exploration goals for 2009 were to focus on nearer term production projects such as our Butte Highlands property. As we
announced early in the year, we successfully completed a joint venture operating agreement with an affiliate of SMD that provides the
Company with a 50% carried interest in Butte Highlands. Our exploration staff has spent most of their time in the past year working
closely with SMD in order to advance the project. While Butte Highlands has been our primary exploration focus, we continue to
evaluate new exploration opportunities, as well as maintaining our claims over several early stage exploration projects in our portfolio
that we hope to be able to advance as the economy and our industry recover from the ongoing recession.
At the beginning of 2009 we stated our belief that the global economic environment and monetary situation favor a solid and relatively
steady gold price for the foreseeable future. This proved to be true, as gold prices remained relatively stable, with a modest uptrend
recently moving prices to new all time highs. While volatility in commodity prices, including gold, is to be expected, our view continues
to be that our business model can be successful even at much lower gold prices than witnessed in the market at present. We believe the
global economic environment and monetary situation favor a solid and relatively steady gold price for the foreseeable future. As a
company we are focused on our drilling subsidiaries, advancing Butte Highlands and evaluating new opportunities. We have evaluated a
number of projects and opportunities and will continue to do so in 2010. Our industry and the world have changed, and we anticipate a
number of changes in the year ahead. We will continue to look for opportunity at every turn.
As we have previously stated and firmly believe, our corporate objective is to provide investors with significant exposure to both the
‘picks and shovels’ and ‘blue sky’ aspects of our industry. We believe that our business model is highly scalable and uniquely wellpositioned to take advantage of the environment that currently exists in the mining and exploration industries and provides us the
flexibility to evaluate a wide range of opportunities going forward. We feel we have the knowledge base to continue to evaluate
opportunities – either organically or through mergers and acquisitions – and continue to do so.
Drilling Services
Timberline Drilling and its subsidiary, World Wide Exploration S.A. de C.V. (“WWE”), provide both surface and underground drilling
services, with their two largest clients being Newmont Mining and Exploraciones Mineras Penoles S.A. de C.V., respectively. Both units
specialize in underground, hard rock core drilling – a niche business that we believe is well-positioned as the industry continues to mature
and exploration projects are advanced into producing mines. Our underground focus has provided a solid base of operations as a large
percentage of the above-ground and more speculative exploration drilling has been cut back and/or delayed during the current industry
slowdown.
Revenue at both Timberline Drilling and WWE decreased considerably during the past year as a result of the global recession.
Management has focused its efforts throughout the past year on matching our expenses with current rates of revenue to assure sustainable
profitability from our drilling entities. While there are still improvements to be made, our combined drilling entities were able to achieve
profitability in the last two quarters of the fiscal year in spite of revenues that were over 40% lower than in the previous year.
At Timberline Drilling, there is a significant liability on the Company’s balance sheet related to interest and penalties for late payment of
payroll taxes for payrolls during the period from October 1, 2007 through May 15, 2008 This liability was generated during a period of
substantial company growth when the drilling company’s previous management team used available funds to pay other liabilities of the
subsidiary rather than paying the payroll taxes and resulting penalties and interest. While the Company has repaid all outstanding payroll
taxes owing from these periods during the year ending September 30, 2009, the Company has recorded an accrual of $424,262 in unpaid
penalties and interest as of September 30, 2009. The Company has made timely payments on all payroll taxes since May 15, 2008 and
has negotiated a payment plan with the IRS relating to the unpaid interest and penalties owed. In April 2009, the Company began making
monthly installment payments on the outstanding balance of interest and penalties. During the year ended September 30, 2009,
Timberline Drilling’s assets became subject to a tax lien until all interest and penalties assessed by the IRS are satisfied. If the Company
fails to comply with the negotiated payment plan or is otherwise unable to pay the interest and penalties owed to the IRS, the IRS could
force the sale of certain assets of Timberline Drilling to satisfy the interest and penalties due.
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Mineral Exploration
Early in fiscal 2009, the Company announced plans to form a 50/50 joint venture with SMD for the advancement of our Butte Highlands
project. In July 2009 the Company finalized the operating agreement for the Butte Highlands project with Highland Mining, LLC
(“Highland”), an affiliate of SMD.
During the year we continued to advance the Butte Highlands project with additional geological evaluation and began an exploration drill
program in July that concluded subsequent to our year end. Development for the Butte Highlands Gold Project has begun with the cutting
of the portal following receipt of the company’s exploration permit in August 2009. In the coming year, the Butte Highlands project
focus will be on completion of a development ramp, additional drilling, and a 10,000 ton bulk sample. During this time, Timberline will
be submitting an application for an operating permit with the Montana Department of Environmental Quality to commence gold mining
operations. Timberline will be conducting or contracting all base line studies to facilitate the permit. Timberline expects that the
permitting process will take approximately 12 months. Therefore, Timberline expects to transition from underground exploration and
development to gold mining operations. The Company expects that the total costs incurred by the joint venture on the project to reach
production will be between $12 and $18 million.
Our management and geologists remain committed to providing exploration “blue sky” and potential for discovery to our investors.
Looking ahead, it is the opinion of management that our primary commodity focus should be on gold, and to a lesser extent on silver in
the precious metals area. Furthermore, we believe that projects similar to Butte Highlands are a good fit for the current environment and
the unique qualifications of our people, drilling subsidiaries and strategic partners. We do not plan to expend significant capital or time
on larger early stage exploration projects unless they can be done at a minimal cost to the Company and not at the cost of advancing or
acquiring more advanced stage properties. We have evaluated, and will continue to evaluate, projects that fit our new focus.
Results of Operations for Years Ended September 30, 2009 and 2008
Combined Results – Timberline Corporate, Timberline Exploration, Timberline Drilling and WWE
For the year ended September 30, 2009, we reported $17,573,098 in revenue compared to $31,728,617 in fiscal 2008. Our revenues are
derived entirely from our drilling subsidiaries and are comprised of $13,242,093 from Timberline Drilling and $4,331,005 from WWE.
Our revenue decrease was primarily due to a decreased number of drill rigs in service during the year. Gross profit from Timberline
Drilling and WWE was $1,092,575 and $451,733, respectively for the year ended September 30, 2009. Gross profit margins decreased
from the previous year primarily as a result of the rapid slowdown in drilling activity during the first six months of the fiscal year. In the
last six months of the fiscal year we were able to rationalize our operating expenses to be more consistent with our decreased revenues
and gross profit margins have returned to more typical levels for our drilling entities as of September 30, 2009.
Our overall after tax net loss for the year ended September 30, 2009 was $7,308,628 compared to an overall net loss of $10,103,696 for
the year ended September 30, 2008. The reduced net loss compared to the prior year is primarily the result of reducing the amount
expended by the Company on mineral exploration as well as a reduction in salaries, benefits and severance expenses. The reduction in
these expenses was offset somewhat by lower gross margins on our operations as discussed above. Our net loss after income taxes for the
year ended September 30, 2009 was comprised of a loss of $5,997,234 for Timberline Corporate and Exploration, a loss of $1,132,262 for
Timberline Drilling, and a loss of $179,132 at WWE. Our net loss after income taxes for the year ended September 30, 2008 was
comprised of a loss of $7,966,645 for Timberline Corporate and Exploration, and a loss of $3,401,329 for Timberline Drilling, offset by a
gain of $1,264,278 at WWE
Timberline Corporate and Exploration Division
The after tax net loss of $5,997,234 combined for Timberline Corporate and the Exploration division is comprised of exploration
expenditures of $493,389, non-cash charges of $2,271,348, professional fees expense of $1,278,573, other general and administrative
costs of $1,208,621, and interest expense of $761,469 less interest income of $16,166. Included in the non-cash charges are $2,234,856
in expenses related to common stock issuances to employees and stock options that vested during the year. Also included in the non-cash
charges is $36,492 in Depreciation and Amortization.
The reduction in the after next loss for Timberline Corporate and the Exploration division for the year ended September 30, 2009 as
compared to the previous year’s after tax net loss of $7,966,645 is primarily a result of significantly reduced expenditures on mineral
exploration activities, in addition to reduced legal and accounting costs. During the previous year the Company incurred a significant
amount of legal and accounting costs associated with our proposed acquisition of SMD.
Timberline Drilling and WWE
For the year ended September 30, 2009, Timberline Drilling had revenues of $13,242,093 as compared to $22,660,556 for the year ended
September 30, 2008. WWE had revenues of $4,331,005 for the year ended September 30, 2009 as compared to $9,068,061 for the year
ended September 30, 2008. Both Timberline Drilling and WWE experienced reductions in revenue as a direct result of fewer core
drilling rigs being in operation during the year as compared to the previous year.
For the year ended September 30, 2009, Gross profit from Timberline Drilling and WWE was $1,092,575 and $451,733, respectively, as
compared to $3,989,352 for Timberline Drilling and $2,799,766 for WWE for the year ended September 30, 2008. The reduction in
gross profits is a function of lower drilling revenues in the year ended September 30, 2009 as well as higher operating expenses during the
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first two quarters of the year prior to the Company rationalizing costs once it became clear that sharply reduced drilling activity would
persist for a longer period of time.
Timberline Drilling and WWE had general and administrative expenses of $1,696,934 and $698,016, respectively, for the year ended
September 30, 2009 as compared to $7,001,869 for Timberline Drilling and $736,947 for WWE for the year ended September 30, 2008.
Timberline Drilling’s general and administrative expenses include a recovery of $350,000 in severance costs accrued in the prior year
related to the management transition that was undertaken during the year ending September 30, 2008. The decreased year over year
general and administrative expenses at Timberline Drilling reflect a right-sizing of the company’s overhead costs in order to ensure that
Timberline Drilling is a profitable entity even with lower revenues such as those experienced during the most recent fiscal year.
Financial Condition and Liquidity
At September 30, 2009, we had assets of $14,024,227 consisting of cash in the amount of $969,784; restricted cash of $42,687; accounts
receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, in the amount of $1,422,951; materials and supplies inventory valued at $1,088,428;
property, mineral rights, and equipment, net of depreciation of $6,302,531; goodwill related to the acquisition of Timberline Drilling in
the amount of $2,808,524; and other assets of $1,389,322.
The poor conditions in the U.S. housing market and the credit quality of mortgage backed securities have continued in 2009, causing a
loss of confidence in the broader U.S. and global credit and financial markets and resulting in the collapse of, and government
intervention in, major banks, financial institutions and insurers and creating a climate of greater volatility, less liquidity, widening of
credit spreads, a lack of price transparency, increased credit losses and tighter credit conditions. These disruptions in the current credit
and financial markets have had a significant material adverse impact on a number of financial institutions and have limited access to
capital and credit for many companies. While access to capital has improved recently, these disruptions could, among other things, make
it more difficult for us to obtain, or increase our cost of obtaining, capital and financing for our operations. Our access to additional
capital may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.
We expect to rely upon the revenues generated by our mine services subsidiaries, however, the recent economic instability make it
difficult for the Company’s management to accurately predict revenues from these services into the 2010 fiscal year. If revenues from
our mine services subsidiaries decline, our exploration activities and other operations will be reliant upon equity financings to continue
into the future. The current market conditions could make it difficult or impossible for us to raise necessary funds to meet our capital
requirements. If we are unable to obtain financing through equity investments, we will seek multiple solutions including, but not limited
to, credit facilities or debenture issuances.
At September 30, 2009 the Company has working capital of $169,452, compared to working capital of $78,354 at September 30, 2008.
Management expects to continue to maintain or increase the amount of working capital via continued improvements in operating cash
flows at the Company’s drilling subsidiaries, reduction of exploration expenditures, reduced professional and consulting expenses,
potential sales of capital assets and obtaining financing through equity investments. Subsequent to year end, as described below, the
Company raised $3,546,372 in proceeds from the exercise of outstanding warrants and a private placement of the Company’s common
stock.
Management expects to maintain or improve operating cash flows at the Company’s drilling subsidiaries by continuing to reduce hourly
and salaried payroll expenses, reducing supplies inventory levels, and eliminating non-essential general and administrative costs. The
Company plans to continue curtailing exploration expenditures to focus on only our material exploration properties. This curtailment is
expected to include a reduction in geological staff salaries expense and reduced use of outside geological consultants. Finally, the
Company’s capital assets include drills, drilling related equipment and vehicles for which a resale market exists. The Company will
consider sales of a portion of these capital assets, if necessary, to fund working capital.
Management believes that it has sufficient working capital to meet the Company’s ongoing operating expenses for the next 12 months.
Additional financing may be required if the Company seeks to undertake further property acquisitions or expand its exploration or mine
services operations.
Financing activities
On October 31, 2008, the Company entered into two convertible notes (as described below), one with Ron Guill, a director of the
Company, and his wife, Stacey Guill, and the other with SMD, a company owned by Mr. Guill. Each of the notes was made for a
principal amount of $5 million dollars for an aggregate of $10 million, and both are convertible into the Company’s common stock, as
described below. The Company used the proceeds of the notes to pay off the $8 million loan (plus any applicable interest) previously
provided to the Company by Auramet Trading, LLC (“Auramet”) and described in the Company’s Form 8-K filed on July 3, 2008 (such
loan is hereafter referred to as the “Auramet Loan”) and for general working capital purposes.
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The Convertible Term Note
On October 31, 2008, the Company entered into a series of agreements with SMD in connection with a $5 million loan from SMD. The
loan documents included: a convertible note (the “Convertible Term Note”), a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), a collateral
assignment and pledge of stock and security agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), a security agreement (the “Security Agreement”) and a
right of first refusal over the Company’s Butte Highlands property (the “Right of First Refusal”).
The Convertible Term Note has a principal amount of $5 million and is secured pursuant to the Security Agreement by a pledge of all of
the stock of Timberline Drilling, Inc. (“TDI”), a wholly-owned Company subsidiary incorporated in Idaho, pursuant to the Pledge
Agreement, the shares of which were previously pledged to Auramet but were released upon payment of the Auramet Loan on
October 31, 2008, and a deed of trust to be entered into covering the Company’s Butte Highlands property in Silver Bow county,
Montana (the “Butte Highlands Property”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, the Convertible Term Note bears interest at 10% annually, compounded monthly, with
interest payments due at maturity. The Convertible Term Note is convertible by SMD at any time prior to payment of the note in full, at a
conversion price of $1.50 per share. SMD may also convert all or any portion of the outstanding amount under the Convertible Term Note
into any equity security other than the Company's common stock issued by the Company at the issuance price. The Convertible Term
Note must be repaid on or before October 31, 2010, and may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time without premium or penalty. If the
Company defaults on the Convertible Term Note or any of the related agreements, SMD may declare the Convertible Term Note
immediately due and payable, and the Company must pay SMD an origination fee in the amount of $50,000.
Under the Right of First Refusal, the Company granted SMD a right of first refusal to purchase the Butte Highlands Property on the same
terms as those of any bona fide offer from a third-party upon 60 days’ notice from the Company of any such offer. In addition, the
Company granted SMD a right to develop the Butte Highlands Property on the same terms as those of any bona fide offer to develop the
property from a third-party upon 60 days’ notice from the Company of any such offer.
The Short-Term Convertible Note
In addition, on October 31, 2008, the Company entered into a short-term convertible note (the “Short-Term Convertible Note”), a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), a collateral assignment and pledge of stock and security agreement (the “STN
Pledge Agreement”), and a security agreement (the “STN Security Agreement”) with Ron and Stacey Guill in connection with a loan
for $5 million dollars. Upon approval for listing of the shares issuable under the Short-Term Convertible Note from the NYSE Amex, the
Short-Term Convertible Note will be automatically converted into common stock as described below.
The Short-Term Convertible Note automatically converted into 5,555,556 shares of Company stock (valued at $0.90 per share) upon
approval of the issuance of the additional shares for listing by the NYSE Amex on December 19, 2008. Under the Subscription
Agreement, Mr. and Mrs. Guill subscribed to purchase 5,555,556 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $0.90 per share as
“accredited investors” as defined under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Should the Company decide to issue and
sell any equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities, the Subscription Agreement also obligates the Company to offer a
pro rata share of such securities to Mr. and Mrs. Guill on the same terms and conditions as the proposed sale and issuance.
Subsequent events affecting liquidity and capital resources
In October 2009, warrants to purchase 1,085,944 common shares of the Company were exercised by warrant holders at a price of $0.50
per common share, for aggregate total proceeds of $542,972. Proceeds from the warrant exercises will be used for general working
capital and to evaluate merger and acquisition opportunities in mining services and exploration.
In November 2009, the Company initiated a private placement of the Company’s restricted common stock. Under the private placement
subscription agreement, the Company could sell up to 3,000,000 units for a total of $3,000,000. The Company reserved the right to
increase the amount of the offering in the event that the offering was oversubscribed. Each unit consisted of one share of common stock
and one half of one Class A Warrant; with each whole warrant exercisable to acquire one additional share of common stock at an exercise
price of $1.50 per share until May 31, 2010 and thereafter at an exercise price of $1.75 per share until March 25, 2011. No registration
rights were granted for the shares of common stock or the shares of common stock underlying the warrants. The units were sold for $1.00
each, representing management’s estimate of the fair value of the unit. The Company sold a total of 3,003,400 units for gross proceeds of
$3,003,400; with the private placement closing on November 23, 2009.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition,
revenues, results of operations, liquidity or capital expenditures.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
See Note 2 to the financial statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report for a complete summary of the significant accounting
policies used in the presentation of our financial statements. The summary is presented to assist the reader in understanding the financial
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statements. The accounting policies used conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.
Our critical accounting policies are as follows:
Exploration Expenditures
All exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred. Significant property acquisition payments for active exploration properties are
capitalized. If no mineable ore body is discovered, previously capitalized costs are expensed in the period the property is abandoned.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes drilling service revenues as the drilling services are provided to the customer based on the actual amount drilled
for each contract on a per foot or per hour drilled basis. In some cases, the customer is responsible for mobilization and stand-by costs.
Mobilization is charged to a customer when the Company deploys its personnel and equipment to a specific drilling site. Stand-by is
charged to a customer when the Company deploys its personnel and equipment to a specific drilling site, but for reasons beyond the
Company’s control, drilling activities are not able to take place. Revenue related to reimbursement of mobilization and “stand-by” costs is
recognized in the same period as the costs of mobilization or stand-by are incurred by the Company. The specific terms of each drilling
job are agreed to by the customer and the Company prior to the commencement of drilling. Contract losses are not recognized as the
Company’s agreements with its customers do not put the Company at risk of loss.
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Inventories consist primarily of parts, operating supplies, drill rods and drill bits. The Company values its materials and supplies
inventory, with the exception of drill rods, at the lower of average cost or market. Drill rods are valued using their average cost less an
allowance for rod usage on a per foot drilled basis. Allowances are recorded for inventory considered to be in excess or obsolete.
Review of Carrying Value of Property and Equipment for Impairment
The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual
disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized
equal to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. The factors considered by management in performing
this assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors.
Goodwill
Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Kettle Drilling. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” at least annually goodwill is tested for impairment by applying a fair value based test. In
assessing the value of goodwill, assets and liabilities are assigned to the reporting units and a discounted cash flow analysis is used to
determine fair value. There was no impairment loss revealed by this test as of September 30, 2009.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge exposures to cash flow, market, or foreign currency risks. Derivative
financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities, the
derivative instrument is initially recorded at its fair value, with changes in the fair value reported as charges or credits to income. For
option-based derivative financial instruments, we use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to value the derivative instruments.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
FASB issued Statement No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115, in the first quarter 2007. This statement allows entities to value financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value. The statement provides guidance over the election of the fair value option, including the timing of the election and specific
items eligible for the fair value accounting. Changes in fair values would be recorded in earnings. The adoption of this statement on
October 1, 2008 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141R “Business Combinations”, (“SFAS 141R”). The revised standard is effective for
transactions where the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15,
2008. SFAS No. 141R will change the accounting for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination.
•

Acquisition costs will be generally expensed as incurred;

•

Noncontrolling interests (formally known as “minority interests”) will be valued at fair value at the acquisition date;

•

Acquired contingent liabilities will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and subsequently measured at either the
higher of such amount or the amount determined under existing guidance for non-acquired contingencies;
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•

Restructuring costs associated with a business combination will be generally expensed subsequent to the acquisition date; and

•

Changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition date generally will affect
income tax expense.

It does not appear that the adoption of SFAS No. 141R will have a material effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements. However,
any future business acquisitions occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period on or after December 15, 2008
will be accounted for in accordance with the statement. In December 2007, FASB also issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for
minority interests, which will be re-characterized as non-controlling interests and classified as a component of equity. SFAS 160 requires
retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this statement is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company’s future reported consolidated financial position or results of operations.
In March 2008, FASB issued SFAS No. 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities – an amendment of SFAS
133. This Statement requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the
transparency of financial reporting. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. This Statement encourages, but does not require, comparative
disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s future reported financial position or results of operations.
In May 2008, FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“SFAS 162”). SFAS 162
identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation of financial
statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States. It was effective November 15, 2008, following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The
adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In May 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (“SFAS 165”). SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting for
and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued. This statement is effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. Accordingly, the Company adopted SFAS 165 in its quarter ending June 30, 2009.
The adoption of this statement did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In June 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46R (“SFAS 167”). SFAS 167 amends FASB
Interpretation No. (FIN) 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R) to require an analysis to
determine whether a variable interest gives the entity a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity. This statement requires
an ongoing reassessment and eliminates the quantitative approach previously required for determining whether an entity is the primary
beneficiary. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS
167 in fiscal year 2011 and is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement on the consolidated financial statements.
In June 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets (“SFAS 166”). SFAS 166 removes the concept
of a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) from SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140) and removes the exception from applying FIN 46R. This statement also clarifies the
requirements for isolation and limitations on portions of financial assets that are eligible for sale accounting. This statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS 166 in fiscal year 2011 and is currently
evaluating the impact of adopting this statement on the consolidated financial statements.
Contractual Obligations
As of September 30, 2009, we had the following non-cancelable contractual obligations:
The Company finances a substantial portion of their core drill purchases through capital leases. The capital lease obligations as of
September 30, 2009 and 2008 were $571,452 and $1,130,207, respectively. Future minimum lease payments at September 30, 2009 for
the related obligations under capital leases were:
Year Ending September 30,
2010
2011
Total Minimum Lease Payments
Less Amount Representing Interest
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments
Less Obligations Due within One Year
Obligations Under Capital Leases, Due after One Year
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$431,496
185,476
616,972
(45,520)
571,452
(403,820)
$ 167,632

Long-term debt at September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, consisted of the following:
September 30, 2009

September 30, 2008

Notes payable to various lenders for vehicles and equipment,
in monthly payments totaling $16,667 per month, at rates ranging
from 0.0% to 12.0% with a weighted average interest rate of
approximately 7.6%. The notes are collateralized by the vehicles
and equipment that they represent.

$396,958

$588,369

Less Current Portion

(159,320)

(250,638)

$237,638

$571,534

As of September 30, 2009, debt outstanding will mature as follows:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total

$ 159,320
129,594
72,452
27,630
7,962
$ 396,958

A substantial portion of the Company’s core drill purchases are financed through capital leases. Payments for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2009 under these capital leases were $472,716. The following fiscal year payments are due under these leases: $431,496
(2010), and $185,476 (2011).
Timberline Drilling also owns a fleet of vehicles, trucks and fork-lifts for its drilling operations. Other equipment and vehicles were
financed with notes collateralized by the equipment or vehicles. Payments for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2009 under these
notes were $201,494. The following fiscal year payments are due under these financing arrangements: $183,513 (2010), $142,267 (2011),
$77,807 (2012), $31,004 (2013) and $8,008 (2014).
Timberline and its subsidiaries lease office space and storage facilities. All of these facilities, which we believe are adequate for our
needs for the foreseeable future, are leased. Under the current leases, we paid rental payments of $284,015 in the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2009. The current leases call for total payments of $289,240 in fiscal year 2010.
_________________________________________________________________________________________
Certain information contained in this “Management Discussion and Analysis” constitutes forward looking information and actual results
could differ from estimates, expectations or beliefs contained in such statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not Applicable.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND
SUBSIDIARIES
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September 30, 2009 and 2008
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TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30,
2009
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$257,456 and $150,740, respectively
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred offering and acquisition costs
Deferred financing cost, net

$

969,784

PROPERTY, MINERAL RIGHTS AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, mineral rights and equipment, net
TOTAL PROPERTY, MINERAL RIGHTS AND EQUIPMENT
OTHER ASSETS:
Investment in joint venture
Restricted cash
Deposits and other assets
Goodwill
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued taxes
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of obligations under capital leases
Current portion of customer advances
Accrued offering and acquisition costs
Accrued severance
Deferred revenue
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

$

3,499,371
2,045,223
481,529
923,957
202,550
7,890,133

6,302,531
6,302,531

9,224,550
9,224,550

621,000
42,687
158,777
2,808,524
3,630,988
14,024,227

286,410
160,170
2,808,524
3,255,104
20,369,787

$

$

2,159,857
945,809
482,714
2,173,362
250,638
448,127
923,957
400,000
27,315
7,811,779
337,731
577,534
8,000,000
92,336
9,007,601

-

-

-

-

36,045
29,164,116
(25,130,376)
4,069,785
14,024,227

28,739
21,343,416
(17,821,748)
3,550,407
20,369,787

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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737,503

5,000,000
477,916
237,638
167,632
150,000
6,033,186

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$

1,422,951
1,088,428
609,545
4,090,708

1,222,901
813,418
247,932
473,865
159,320
403,820
600,000
3,921,256

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Convertible note payable to related party
Accrued interest on convertible note payable to related party, due at maturity
Long term debt, net of current portion
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion
Customer advances, net of current portion
Bridge loan financing
Put option on common stock
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized,
none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 36,045,111 and 28,739,903 shares issued
and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30,
2008

$

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended
September 30,
2009
$

REVENUES

17,573,098

$

2008
31,728,617

16,028,790

24,939,499

GROSS PROFIT

1,544,308

6,789,118

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Mineral exploration expenses
Salaries and benefits
Insurance expense
Professional fees expense
Severance benefits (recovery)
Loss on sale of equipment
Other general and administrative expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

493,389
3,053,067
641,325
1,333,553
(350,000)
108,283
2,210,491
7,490,108

2,387,862
4,639,291
1,502,914
1,207,834
1,880,590
209,444
3,227,753
15,055,688

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

(5,945,800)

(8,266,570)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Other income
Foreign exchange loss
Loss on derivative
Interest income
Related party interest expense
Interest expense
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSE

27,798
(74,779)
(154,064)
32,915
(477,916)
(861,871)
(1,507,917)

118,280
(58,865)
(92,336)
167,637
(15,704)
(1,223,888)
(1,104,876)

NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES

(7,453,717)

(9,371,446)

145,089

(732,250)

(7,308,628)

(10,103,696)

-

(6,090,000)

COST OF REVENUES

INCOME TAX BENEFIT (PROVISION)
NET LOSS
EXCESS CONSIDERATION PAID ON REDEMPTION OF
PREFERRED STOCK
NET LOSS AVAILABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS

$

(7,308,628)

$

(16,193,696)

NET LOSS PER SHARE AVAILABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS, BASIC AND DILUTED

$

(0.22)

$

(0.60)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING, BASIC AND DILUTED

33,698,856

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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27,212,826

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2008
Common Stock
Balance, September 30, 2007
Common stock and warrants
issued for cash at $2.75 per
unit, net of offering costs

Shares
24,801,108

$

Amount
24,801

$

Common
Stock
Subscribed
(802,761)

$

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
20,433,478

$

Accumulated
Deficit
(7,718,052)

$

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
11,937,466

845,722

846

-

2,190,120

-

2,190,966

Cash received on stock subscription

-

-

802,761

-

-

802,761

Excess cash paid on redemption of
Series A preferred stock

-

-

-

(6,090,000)

-

(6,090,000)

1,708,273

1,708

-

1,706,565

-

1,708,273

9,800

9

-

(10)

-

(1)

40,000

40

-

135,960

-

136,000

1,175,000

1,175

-

468,825

-

470,000

160,000

160

-

484,640

-

484,800

-

-

-

2,013,838

-

2,013,838

Common stock issued for warrants exercised
Correction of shares outstanding
Common stock bonuses to employees
Common stock issued for conversion of
Series A preferred stock
Common stock issued in connection with
bridge loan financing
Vested portion of stock options granted
Net loss
Balance, September 30, 2008

28,739,903

$

28,739

$

-

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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21,343,416

$

(10,103,696)
(17,821,748)

$

(10,103,696)
3,550,407

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2008
Common
Stock
Subscribed

Common Stock
Balance, September 30, 2008
Common stock issued for options exercised

Shares
28,739,903

$

Amount
28,739

$

-

$

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
21,343,416

$

Accumulated
Deficit
(17,821,748)

$

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
3,550,407

35,000

35

-

(35)

-

-

5,555,556

5,556

-

4,994,444

-

5,000,000

Common stock bonuses to employees

129,000

129

-

81,681

-

81,810

Common stock bonuses to directors

100,000

100

-

78,900

-

79,000

Common stock issued for put option
exercised

535,652

536

-

245,864

-

246,400

Common stock issued for settlement of
accrued offering and acquisition costs

950,000

950

-

345,800

-

346,750

-

-

-

2,074,046

-

2,074,046

Common stock issued for conversion of short
term convertible note

Vested portion of stock options granted
Net loss
Balance, September 30, 2009

36,045,111

$

36,045

$

-

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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29,164,116

$

(7,308,628)
(25,130,376)

$

(7,308,628)
4,069,785

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended
September 30,
2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Loss on sale of equipment
Stock based compensation
Amortization of deferred financing cost
Deferred offering and acquisition costs
Severance recovery
Loss on derivative
Impairment of mineral rights
Accrued offering and acquisition costs
Inventory writedown
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets, deposits and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and other benefits
Accrued taxes
Accrued severance
Deferred revenue
Accrued interest on convertible note payable to related party, due at maturity
Net cash used by operating activities

$

(7,308,628)

2008
$

(10,103,696)

1,367,192
106,716
108,283
2,234,856
202,550
923,957
(350,000)
154,064
90,000
(577,207)
-

1,483,045
150,740
209,444
2,149,839
602,250
(923,957)
92,336
578,391
923,957
535,658

1,865,484
956,795
(26,623)
(936,956)
(132,391)
(234,782)
(1,699,497)
(50,000)
(27,315)
477,916
(2,855,586)

(518,396)
(655,489)
(64,280)
(1,457,308)
774,895
33,586
1,898,441
400,000
(222,685)
(4,113,229)

(291,877)
243,723
1,141,046
(21,000)
1,071,892

(2,044,385)
516,450
71,923
(139,391)
(51,477)
(50,000)
(1,696,880)

(8,000,000)
5,000,000
5,000,000
1,000,000
150,000
(250,000)
(341,411)
(542,614)
2,015,975

(413,226)
(485,084)
60,000
(847,000)
1,608,873
(599,065)
8,000,000
(7,500,000)
(320,000)
802,761
2,290,365
2,597,624

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of equipment
Change in restricted cash
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchase of mineral rights
Purchase of land
Purchase of investment in equity security
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of bridge loan financing
Proceeds from convertible note payable to related party
Proceeds from short term convertible note
Proceeds from customer advances
Proceeds from long term debt
Payments on customer advances
Payments on long term debt
Payments on capital leases
Proceeds from related party notes payable
Payments on related party notes payable
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Payment of note payable to bank
Proceeds from bridge loan financing
Redemption of Series A preferred stock
Deferred financing cost
Collection of common stock subscriptions
Proceeds from issuances of stock and warrants, net of stock offering costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net increase (decrease) in cash

232,281

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

737,503
969,784

$

(3,212,485)
$

3,949,988
737,503

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
Interest paid in cash
Income taxes paid in cash

$

237,718
750,123

$

606,000
202,964

$

5,000,000
621,000
346,750
246,400
180,692
104,220
100,000
88,405
-

$

700,895
387,297
470,000
484,800
129,423

NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Conversion of short term convertible note into common stock
Transfer of land to joint venture
Settlement of accrued offering and acquisition costs with common stock
Settlement of put option with common stock
Long term debt refinancing
Account receivable exchanged for equipment
Note receivable for equipment sale
Capital lease for equipment purchase
Series A preferred stock exchanged for common stock
Common stock issued in connection with bridge loan financing
Long term debt issued for equipment purchase

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Timberline Resources Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:
Timberline Resources Corporation (“Timberline” or “the Company”) was incorporated in August of 1968 under the
laws of the State of Idaho as Silver Crystal Mines, Inc., for the purpose of exploring for precious metal deposits and
advancing them to production.
In 2006, the Company acquired Kettle Drilling, Inc. (“Kettle”) and its Mexican subsidiary, World Wide Exploration
S.A. de C.V. (“World Wide”). Kettle provides drilling services to the mining and mineral exploration industries
across North America and worldwide. In September 2008, Kettle Drilling, Inc. changed its name to Timberline
Drilling Incorporated (“Timberline Drilling”).
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
a. Basis of Presentation – This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist in understanding
the financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management,
which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the
preparation of the financial statements.
b. Principles of Consolidation – The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, Timberline Drilling and World Wide after elimination of the intercompany accounts
and transactions.
c.

Exploration Expenditures – All exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred. Significant property
acquisition payments for active exploration properties are capitalized. If no mineable ore body is discovered,
previously capitalized costs are expensed in the period the property is abandoned.

d.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The Company’s financial instruments include cash, restricted cash,
accounts receivable, investments, accounts payable, derivatives and accrued expenses, and are carried at fair
value. The carrying value of restricted cash, notes payable, capital leases, customer advances, convertible note
payable to related party, bridge loan financing and derivatives approximate fair value based on the contractual
terms of those instruments.

e.

Cash Equivalents – For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at each financial institution.

f.

Restricted Cash – Restricted cash represents investments in money market funds and are restricted as collateral
for bonds held for exploration permits.

g.

Estimates and Assumptions – The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates and
assumptions and could have a material effect on the Company’s reported financial position and results of
operations.
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TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued):
h.

Investments – We determine the appropriate classification of our investments at the time of purchase. The
Company owns 1,480,000 restricted shares of Rae Wallace Mining Company, a private corporation and related
party. The investment is recorded in deposits and other assets at cost ($50,000), which management believes
approximates fair market value at September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company also has a 50%
interest in a joint venture at its Butte Highlands Gold Project (see Note 5). Given that the Company’s 50%
interest in the joint venture is carried to production, the Company does not have management control over
operating decisions of the joint venture until its joint venture partner’s investment in the project, less $2 million,
is recovered by the joint venture partner out of future production; and the Company has no risk of loss from
expenses incurred by the joint venture until production, the Company is carrying its investment in the joint
venture at cost on its consolidated balance sheet.

i.

Revenue Recognition – The Company recognizes drilling service revenues as the drilling services are provided
to the customer based on the actual amount drilled for each contract on a per foot or per hour drilled basis. In
some cases, the customer is responsible for mobilization and stand-by costs. Mobilization is charged to a
customer when the Company deploys its personnel and equipment to a specific drilling site. Stand-by is
charged to a customer when the Company deploys its personnel and equipment to a specific drilling site but, for
reasons beyond the Company’s control, drilling activities are not able to take place. Revenue related to
reimbursement of mobilization and stand-by costs is recognized in the same period as the costs are incurred by
the Company. The specific terms of each drilling job are agreed to by the customer and the Company prior to
the commencement of drilling. Contract losses are not recognized as the Company’s agreements with its
customers do not put the Company at a risk of loss.

j.

Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful
accounts. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual
customer receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit history, and current economic
conditions. Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously
written off are recorded as income when received.

k.

Materials and Supplies Inventory – Inventories consist primarily of parts, operating supplies, drill rods and drill
bits. The Company values its materials and supplies inventory, with the exception of drill rods, at the lower of
average cost or market. Drill rods are valued using their average cost less an allowance for rod usage on a per
foot drilled basis. Allowances are recorded for inventory considered to be in excess or obsolete.

l.

Property and Equipment –- Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which ranges from three
to fifteen years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Significant improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the useful life of the assets. Gains or losses on disposition or retirement of
property and equipment are recognized in operating expenses.

m. Assets Held under Capital Leases – Assets held under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the net present
value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased assets at the inception of the lease.
Amortization expense is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the period of the related lease.
n.

Review of Carrying Value of Property, Mineral Rights and Equipment for Impairment – The Company reviews
the carrying value of property, mineral rights and equipment for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash
flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this
assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used,
and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment, it
was determined that our East Camp Douglas, Gold Gate and Long Canyon properties were impaired at
September 30, 2009 and $90,000 in carrying values were written off to mineral exploration expenses during the
year ended September 30, 2009. No other properties were determined to be impaired at September 30, 2009.
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TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued):
At September 30, 2008 it was determined that an impairment in the value of our Conglomerate Mesa property
existed and the entire carrying value amount of $578,391 was written off to mineral exploration expenses
during the year ended September 30, 2008. No other properties were determined to be impaired at September
30, 2008.
o.

Provision for Income Taxes – Income taxes are provided based upon the liability method of accounting. Under
this approach, deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each year-end. A
valuation allowance is recorded against the deferred tax asset if management believes it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized (See Note 11).

p.

Translation of Foreign Currencies – All amounts are presented in US dollars. World Wide’s operations in
Mexico are translated at average rates of exchange for the year. The assets and liabilities of the Mexico
operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Foreign translation and
transaction losses of $74,779 and $58,865 for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, have
been included in the current period net loss as a component of other expense.

q.

Stock-based Compensation – The Company accounts for its stock based compensation in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-based Payment (“SFAS 123(R)”).
Under SFAS 123(R), the Company is required to select a valuation technique or option-pricing model that
meets the criteria as stated in the standard. At present, the Company is continuing to use the Black-Scholes
model, which requires the input of some subjective assumptions. These assumptions include estimating the
length of time employees will retain their vested stock options before exercising them (“expected life”), the
estimated volatility of the Company’s common stock price over the expected term (“volatility”), employee
forfeiture rate, the risk-free interest rate and the dividend yield. Changes in the subjective assumptions can
materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation.

r.

Goodwill – Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Timberline Drilling. At least annually, goodwill is tested for
impairment by applying a fair value based test. In assessing the value of goodwill, assets and liabilities are
assigned to the reporting units and a discounted expected cash flow analysis is used to determine fair value.
There was no impairment loss revealed by this test as of September 30, 2009 or 2008.

s. Net Loss per Share – Basic EPS is computed as net income (loss) available to common shareholders divided by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution that could occur from common shares issuable through stock options, warrants, and other convertible
securities.
The dilutive effect of convertible and exercisable securities as of September 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:
September 30, 2009

September 30, 2008

6,235,168
1,337,934
3,651,944
11,225,046

3,917,502
2,301,734
6,219,236

Stock options
Warrants
Convertible debt
Total possible dilution

On June 27, 2008, the Company redeemed and cancelled 3,525,000 of the 4,700,000 Series A Preferred Stock
outstanding on that date for $7,500,000 (see Note 14). Due to the lack of retained earnings, the excess amount
paid is recorded as a reduction in Additional Paid-in Capital of $6,090,000. This excess is treated similarly to a
dividend for purposes of calculating EPS.
At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the effect of the Company’s outstanding options and common stock
equivalents would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, only basic EPS is presented.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued):
t.

Derivative Instruments –The Company follows established accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities.
Those standards require that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet
and measure those instruments at fair value. The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge
exposures to cash flow, market or foreign currency risks. For a derivative not designated as a hedging
instrument, the gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations in the period of change.

u.

New Accounting Pronouncements – In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure about fair value measurements, but does not require any new fair
value measurements. Effective October 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 for our
financial assets and financial liabilities without a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. In February 2008, FASB issued Staff position 157-2 which delays the effective date of SFAS 157
for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial
liabilities on our consolidated financial statements.
FASB issued Statement No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities –
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, in the first quarter 2007. This statement allows entities to
value financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The statement provides guidance over the
election of the fair value option, including the timing of the election and specific items eligible for the fair value
accounting. Changes in fair values would be recorded in earnings. The adoption of this statement on October 1,
2008 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141R “Business Combinations”, (“SFAS 141R”). The revised
standard is effective for transactions where the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. SFAS 141R will change the accounting for the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination.
•

Acquisition costs will be generally expensed as incurred;

•

Noncontrolling interests (formally known as “minority interests”) will be valued at fair value at
the acquisition date;

•

Acquired contingent liabilities will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and
subsequently measured at either the higher of such amount or the amount determined under
existing guidance for non-acquired contingencies;

•

Restructuring costs associated with a business combination will be generally expensed subsequent
to the acquisition date; and

•

Changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after the
acquisition date generally will affect income tax expense.

It does not appear that the adoption of SFAS 141R will have a material effect on our Consolidated Financial
Statements. However, any future business acquisitions occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period on or after December 15, 2008 will be accounted for in accordance with the statement. In
December 2007, FASB also issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for
minority interests, which will be re-characterized as non-controlling interests and classified as a component of
equity. SFAS 160 requires retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing
minority interests. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s future reported consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued):
In March 2008, FASB issued SFAS No. 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
– an amendment of SFAS 133. This Statement requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and
hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. This Statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early
application encouraged. This Statement encourages, but does not require, comparative disclosures for earlier
periods at initial adoption. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s future reported financial position or results of operations.
In May 2008, FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“SFAS 162”). SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the
principles to be used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. It was effective November 15,
2008, following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU
Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
In May 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (“SFAS 165”). SFAS 165 establishes general
standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial
statements are issued. This statement is effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009.
Accordingly, the Company adopted SFAS 165 in its quarter ending June 30, 2009. The adoption of this
statement did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In June 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46R (“SFAS 167”). SFAS
167 amends FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (FIN 46R) to require an analysis to determine whether a variable interest gives the entity a controlling
financial interest in a variable interest entity. This statement requires an ongoing reassessment and eliminates
the quantitative approach previously required for determining whether an entity is the primary beneficiary. This
statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. Accordingly, the Company will
adopt SFAS 167 in fiscal year 2011 and is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement on the
consolidated financial statements.
In June 2009, FASB issued SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets (“SFAS 166”). SFAS
166 removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) from SFAS No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140) and removes the
exception from applying FIN 46R. This statement also clarifies the requirements for isolation and limitations on
portions of financial assets that are eligible for sale accounting. This statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2009. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS 166 in fiscal year 2011 and is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement on the consolidated financial statements.
v.

Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2008 financial statements in order to
conform to the 2009 presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on net loss, total assets or accumulated
deficit as previously reported. At September 30, 2008, the Company did not correctly present the $320,000
value of a put option in its consolidated statement of cash flows (see Note 7), however this error was considered
by the Company to be immaterial in nature as there was no impact on the overall cash flows of the Company, its
consolidated statement of operations or consolidated balance sheet, therefore no restatement of the prior year’s
financial statements was made. The comparative statement of cash flows for the year ended September 30,
2008 as presented in these financial statements reflects the correct classification.
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NOTE 3 – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” for our
financial assets and financial liabilities without a material effect on our results of operations and financial position.
SFAS No. 157 expands disclosure requirements to include the following information for each major category of
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
a. the fair value measurement;
b. the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements in their entirety fall, segregating
fair value measurements using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),
significant other observable inputs (Level 2), and significant unobservable inputs (Level 3);
c. for fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), a reconciliation of the beginning
and ending balances, separately presenting changes during the period attributable to the following:
1)

total gains or losses for the period (realized and unrealized), segregating those gains or losses
included in earnings (or changes in net assets), and a description of where those gains or losses
included in earnings (or changes in net assets) are reported in the statement of income (or
activities);

2)

the amount of these gains or losses attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating
to those assets liabilities still held at the reporting period date and a description of where those
unrealized gains or losses are reported;

3)

purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net); and

4)

transfers in and/or out of Level 3.

The table below sets forth our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
as of September 30, 2009, and the fair value calculation input hierarchy level that we have determined applies to
each asset and liability category.
Balance at
September 30,
2009
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investment in Rae Wallace

$
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969,784
42,687
50,000

Input
Hierarchy
Level
Level 1
Level 1
Level 2
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NOTE 4 – PROPERTY, MINERAL RIGHTS AND EQUIPMENT:
The following is a summary of property, mineral rights and equipment and accumulated depreciation at September
30, 2009 and 2008:

Equipment and vehicles
Office equipment and furniture
Land
Mineral rights
Leasehold improvements
Total property, mineral rights and
equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property, mineral rights and
i

Expected
Useful Lives
(years)
5-10
3-10
5-15

2009
$

$

9,312,806
261,664
51,477
47,000
149,377

2008
$

10,421,807
258,259
672,477
116,000
145,401

9,822,324

11,613,944

(3,519,793)
6,302,531 $

(2,389,394)
9,224,550

Property and equipment includes assets (primarily core drilling equipment) held under capital leases of $1,592,273
and $2,054,038 at September 30, 2009 and 2008. Related amortization of assets held under capital leases included in
accumulated depreciation was $509,920 and $482,213 at September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (See Note 8).
Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 was $1,367,192 and $1,483,045,
respectively.
During the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Company acquired $104,220 and $700,895
in equipment and vehicles in exchange for outstanding accounts receivable from customers.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Company transferred its Butte Highlands land, valued at $621,000 to
the Butte Highlands Joint Venture, LLC (“BHJV”) in return for a 50% carried interest in BHJV (See Note 5).
NOTE 5 – INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE:
In July 2009, the Company entered into a Joint Venture Operating Agreement with Highland Mining, LLC
(“Highland”), an entity controlled by Ronald Guill, a director of the Company. The joint venture entity, Butte
Highlands JV, LLC (“BHJV”) was created for the purpose of developing and mining the Butte Highlands Gold
Project. As a result of its contribution of the Company’s 100% interest in the Butte Highlands Gold Project, carried
on its balance sheet at the original purchase price of the Butte Highlands project ($621,000) to BHJV, the Company
holds a 50% interest in BHJV. Under terms of the agreement, the Company will be carried to production by
Highland, which will fund all future project exploration and mine development costs.
Under the operating agreement for BHJV, Highland will contribute property and fund all future mine development
costs at Butte Highlands. Both the Company’s and Highlands’s share of development costs will be paid from
proceeds of future mine production. The BHJV operating agreement stipulates that Highland shall appoint a
manager of BHJV and that Highland will manage BHJV until such time as all mine development costs, less $2
million, are distributed to Highland out of the proceeds from future mine production.
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NOTE 6 – CUSTOMER ADVANCES:
During the year ended September 30, 2009, a major customer provided an advance payment for drilling services of
$1,000,000 to the Company and extended its contract with the Company through February 2011. The advance is to
be repaid by twenty monthly payments of $50,000 beginning May 15, 2009 and ending December 15, 2010. The
advance was provided pursuant to a contract change order which did not contain any provisions for interest or
prepayment penalties, nor any specified right of offset. As of September 30, 2009 and September 30, 2008,
customer advances were $750,000 and none, respectively, and $150,000 of the remaining customer advance balance
was classified as a long-term liability as of September 30, 2009.
NOTE 7 – BRIDGE LOAN FINANCING:
During the year ended September 30, 2008, the Company entered into a bridge loan financing arrangement for
$8,000,000 with Auramet Trading, LLC (“Auramet”) under which the Company could draw funds at any time
before June 30, 2008. On June 27, 2008 the Company withdrew $8,000,000, net of a loan origination fee equal to
4% of the principal amount of the loan ($320,000), to redeem the Company’s outstanding Series A Preferred Shares
(See Note 14). The origination fee was recorded as deferred financing costs and was amortized over the life of the
loan. The bridge loan had an interest rate of 12% per annum, with interest payable monthly in arrears commencing
August 1, 2008, and the principal amount outstanding was due October 31, 2008.
Pursuant to the loan’s terms, the Company also issued 160,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to Auramet
after the Company’s drawdown of the loan on June 27, 2008. The fair market value of the 160,000 common shares
($484,800) was recorded on the balance sheet at September 30, 2008 in common stock, additional paid-in capital
and deferred financing cost, net. The deferred financing costs were ratably charged to interest expense over the term
of the loan. In addition, Auramet received a put option for the 160,000 shares of common stock issued, exercisable
ninety days from the maturity date of the bridge loan to put some or all of the 160,000 common shares back to the
Company at a redemption price of $2.00 per share.
At September 30, 2008, the Company did not correctly present the $320,000 value of the put option in its
consolidated statement of cash flows, however this error was considered by the Company to be immaterial in nature
as there was no impact on the overall cash flows of the company, its consolidated statement of earnings or
consolidated balance sheet, therefore no restatement of the prior year’s financial statements was made. The
comparative statement of cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2008 as presented in these financial
statements reflects the correct classification.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, Auramet indicated its intention to exercise the put option and return the
160,000 shares to the Company. The Company and Auramet agreed that the Company would issue an additional
535,652 shares of common stock, valued at the trailing 30 day average closing price of the Company’s stock of
$0.46 per share, to Auramet in lieu of settling the option with a cash payment. These shares were issued in March
2009. A loss on the derivative of $154,064 and $92,336 was recorded in the consolidated statement of operations
for the years ending September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The effective annual interest rate of the bridge loan, including origination fees, the fair market value of common
shares issued and the fair value of the put option was 46%.
In October 2008, the outstanding bridge loan principal amount was repaid in full. However, at September 30, 2008
the $8 million bridge loan was classified as a long term liability on the Company’s balance sheet because the loan
was repaid with proceeds from a $5 million long term financing obligation and proceeds from a $5 million financing
obligation that was converted to common shares of the Company subsequent to September 30, 2008 (see Note 10).
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NOTE 8 – CAPITAL LEASES:
The Company finances a substantial portion of their core drilling equipment purchases through capital leases.
Future minimum lease payments at September 30, 2009 for the related obligations under capital leases were:
Year Ending September 30,
2010
2011
Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less obligations due within one year
Obligations under capital leases, due after one year

$

$

431,496
185,476
616,972
(45,520)
571,452
(403,820)
167,632

NOTE 9 – LONG TERM DEBT:
Long term debt at September 30, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following:
2009
Notes payable to various lenders for vehicles and
equipment, in monthly payments totaling $16,667
per month, at rates ranging from 0.0% to 12.0%
with a weighted average interest rate of approximately
7.6%. The notes are collateralized by vehicles,
equipment, accounts receivable and restricted cash.
Less current portion

$
$

Debt outstanding will mature as follows:
Year ending September 30,
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total

$

$

2008

396,958 $
(159,320)
237,638 $

588,369
(250,638)
337,731

159,320
129,594
72,452
27,630
7,962
396,958

NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
Related party notes payable consist of the following at September 30, 2009 and 2008:
2009
Small Mine Development, LLC
Accrued interest on note payable to
Small Mine Development, LLC, payable at maturity
Related party interest expense
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2008

$

5,000,000

$

-

$
$

477,916
477,916

$
$

15,704
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NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, (continued):
On October 31, 2008, Timberline Resources Corporation (the “Company”) entered into two convertible notes as
described below; one with Ronald Guill, a director of the Company, and his wife, Stacey Guill, and the other with
Small Mine Development, LLC (“SMD”), an Idaho limited liability company owned by Mr. Guill. The Company
used the proceeds of the notes to pay off the $8.0 million bridge loan previously provided to the Company by
Auramet Trading, LLC (“Auramet”) (See Note 7) and for general working capital purposes.
Convertible Term Note
On October 31, 2008, the Company entered into a series of agreements with SMD in connection with a $5 million
loan from SMD. The loan documents included: a convertible note (the “Convertible Term Note”), a credit
agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), a collateral assignment and pledge of stock and security agreement (the
“Pledge Agreement”), a security agreement (the “Security Agreement”) and a right of first refusal over the
Company’s Butte Highlands property (the “Right of First Refusal”).
The Convertible Term Note has a principal amount of $5.0 million and is collateralized pursuant to the Security
Agreement by a pledge of all of the stock of Timberline Drilling, Inc. (“TDI”), a wholly-owned Company subsidiary
incorporated in Idaho, pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, the shares of which were previously pledged to Auramet
but were released upon payment of the Auramet Loan on October 31, 2008, and a deed of trust to be entered into
covering the Company’s Butte Highlands property in Silver Bow county, Montana (the “Butte Highlands
Property”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, the Convertible Term Note bears interest at 10% annually,
compounded monthly, with interest payments due at maturity on October 31, 2010. The Convertible Term Note,
including accrued interest, is convertible by SMD at any time prior to payment of the note in full, at a conversion
price of $1.50 per share. Should the Company issue any form of equity security other than the Company’s common
stock, SMD may also convert all or any portion of the outstanding amount under the Convertible Term Note into the
new form of equity security at the issuance price of the new form of equity security. Management analyzed the
conversion features contained in this note considering EITF No. 00-27 “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain
Convertible Instruments”, EITF 00-19 "Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially
Settled in, a Company's Own Stock," EITF No. 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial
Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios”, and APB 14, “Accounting for Convertible
Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants.” Management’s conclusion was that these convertible features
are conventional convertible instruments and thus would qualify for equity classification under EITF 00-19. As
conventional convertible instruments, the embedded conversion options qualify for the scope exception under FAS
133, and therefore would not be bifurcated from the host instrument.
Under the Right of First Refusal, the Company granted SMD a right of first refusal to purchase the Butte Highlands
Property on the same terms as those of any bona fide offer from a third-party upon 60 days’ notice from the
Company of any such offer. In addition, the Company granted SMD a right to develop the Butte Highlands Property
on the same terms as those of any bona fide offer to develop the property from a third-party upon 60 days’ notice
from the Company of any such offer.
Short-Term Convertible Note
In addition, on October 31, 2008, the Company entered into a short-term convertible note (the “Short-Term
Convertible Note”), a subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), a collateral assignment and pledge of
stock and security agreement (the “STN Pledge Agreement”), and a security agreement (the “STN Security
Agreement”) with Ronald and Stacey Guill in connection with a loan for $5 million.
The Short-Term Convertible Note principal automatically converted into 5,555,556 shares of Company common
stock (valued at $0.90 per share) upon approval of the issuance of the additional shares for listing by the NYSE
Amex. Regulatory approval was received December 19, 2008. The Short-Term Convertible Note was collateralized
pursuant to the STN Security Agreement by a pledge of all stock of TDI pursuant to the STN Pledge Agreement.
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NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, (continued):
Under the Subscription Agreement, Mr. and Mrs. Guill subscribed to purchase 5,555,556 shares of the Company’s
common stock at a price of $0.90 per share. Should the Company decide to issue and sell any equity securities or
securities convertible into equity securities, the Subscription Agreement also obligates the Company to offer a pro
rata share of such securities to Mr. and Mrs. Guill on the same terms and conditions as the proposed sale and
issuance.
Butte Highlands Joint Venture Agreement
On October 27, 2008 the Company announced it had entered into discussions with Mr. Guill to form a 50/50 joint
venture with SMD at Timberline’s 100-percent owned Butte Highlands Gold Project.
On July 22, 2009, the Company entered into an Operating Agreement with Highland Mining, LLC (“Highland”), an
affiliate of SMD, to form a 50/50 joint venture for development and mining of the Company’s Butte Highlands Gold
Project. Under the terms of the operating agreement, the Company will contribute its Butte Highlands property to
BHJV for a deemed value of $2 million, and Highland will contribute property and fund all future mine
development costs. Both the Company’s and Highland’s share of costs will be paid out of proceeds from future
mine production.
Mr. Guill, a director of the Company and an owner of Highland, will be the manager of BHJV until such time as all
mine development costs less $2 million are distributed to Highland. At that time, a management committee will be
formed with equal representation from Highland and the Company. Under the terms of the Operating Agreement,
Highland will have preferential rights with respect to distributions until the investment by the Company is deemed
equal to the investment by Highland.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, Timberline Drilling, our wholly owned subsidiary, provided $431,184 in
core drilling services to BHJV at the Butte Highlands Gold Project.
At September 30, 2009, the Company has a receivable from BHJV for expenses incurred on behalf of BHJV in the
amount of $167,073. This amount is included in prepaid expenses and other assets on the consolidated balance
sheet at September 30, 2009.
Resignation of Former Timberline Drilling Management
In March 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Douglas Kettle and David and Margaret Deeds
providing for severance arrangements relating to the resignation of Messrs. Kettle and Deeds, the President and
CEO, respectively, of Timberline Drilling.
Messrs. Kettle and Deeds resigned from Timberline Drilling on May 15, 2008. In connection with the resignations,
the Company paid each of Mr. Kettle and Mr. Deeds a cash severance amount of $600,000 at the time of their
resignation, as well as the balance of their 2007 bonuses ($135,822 each) and additional cash severance of $150,000
in $25,000 installments from June through November 2008. Additionally, the Company also transferred certain
personal property to Mr. Kettle and Mr. Deeds.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Company entered into a Settlement and Release Agreement with
Douglas Kettle and David and Margaret Deeds (“Kettle Affiliates”). Pursuant to the agreement, the Kettle Affiliates
agreed to purchase certain non-utilized assets from the Company and to release any claims against the Company,
including their claim to the remaining $350,000 of severance owing to them as of December 31, 2008. The
Company released any claims against the Kettle Affiliates, including releasing Mr. Kettle and Mr. Deeds from the
remainder of the term of their previous non-competition agreements.
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NOTE 11 – INCOME TAXES:
At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company had a net deferred tax asset calculated at an expected rate of 41%
(34% Federal and 7% Idaho state) of $9,439,300 and $7,123,000 respectively, principally arising from net operating
loss carryforwards for income tax purposes. As management of the Company cannot determine that it is more likely
than not that the Company will realize the benefit of the net deferred tax asset, a valuation allowance equal to 100%
of the net deferred tax asset has been recorded at September 30, 2009 and 2008.

2009
Deferred tax asset:
Exploration costs
Property, mineral rights and equipment
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Put option related to bridge loan financing
Deferred compensation
Intangible assets
Vested share-based compensation
Foreign income tax credit carryforwards
Net operating losses
Total deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

$

$

2008

539,500 $
(219,000)
106,000
(72,000)
1,522,000
442,800
7,120,000
9,439,300
(9,439,300) $

(242,000)
62,000
38,000
123,000
22,000
711,000
643,000
5.766,000
7,123,000
(7,123,000)

Net income (loss) before income taxes for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
2009
Current:
Domestic
Foreign

$

2008

(7,098,117)
(355,600)
(7,453,717)

$

$

(11,367,974)
1,996,528
(9,371,446)

$

Significant components of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 are as
follows:
2009
2008
Current:
Federal
$
- $
State
Foreign
145,089
(732,250)
Total current income tax (provision) benefit
145,089
(732,250)
Deferred:
Federal
Foreign
Total deferred income tax provision
Total income tax (provision) benefit

$
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NOTE 11 – INCOME TAXES, (continued):
2009
Statutory Federal income tax rate

2008
34%

Expected income tax expense (benefit) based
on statutory rate

$

Permanent differences, including state tax effect
Non-recognition due to increase in
valuation allowance
Foreign tax (expense) benefit
Total income tax (provision) benefit

$

34%

(2,534,300) $

(3,186,300)

218,000

225,000

2,316,300

2,961,300

145,089

(732,250)

145,089

$

(732,250)

On October 1, 2007, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Tax Positions (“FIN48”). FIN48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
the recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN48 also
provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities, and accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions. In the
course of our assessment in adopting FIN48, we determined that we were subject to examination of our income tax
filings in the United States and various state jurisdictions for the 2003 – 2006 tax years. Within each of these
jurisdictions we examined our material tax positions to determine whether we believed they would be sustained
under the more-likely-than-not guidance provided by FIN48. If interest and penalties were to be assessed, we would
charge interest to interest expense, and penalties to other operating expense. As a result of our assessment, we have
concluded that the adoption of FIN48 had no significant impact on the Company’s results of operations or balance
sheet for the year ended September 30, 2008, and required no adjustment to opening balance sheet accounts as of
October 1, 2007.
A foreign income tax receivable of $123,500 is included with prepaid expenses and other current assets at
September 30, 2009. At September 30, 2009, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$17,367,000 which will expire through September 30, 2028. Additionally, at September 30, 2009 the Company had
$442,800 of foreign tax credit carryforwards that expire in 2012 and 2013.
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 substantially changed the rules relative to the use of net operating loss and general
business credit carryforwards in the event of an “ownership change” of a corporation. Due to the change in
ownership during January 2004, the Company is restricted in the future use of net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards generated before the ownership change. As of September 30, 2009, this limitation is applicable to
accumulated net operating losses of approximately $2,040,000.
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NOTE 12 – COMMON STOCK AND WARRANTS:
Stock Issued on Conversion of Short Term Convertible Note
In October 2008, the Company entered into a short-term convertible note (the “Short-Term Convertible Note”) with
Ronald and Stacey Guill in connection with a loan for $5 million (See Note 10). The Short-Term Convertible Note
principal automatically converted into 5,555,556 shares of Company stock (valued at $0.90 per share) upon approval
of the issuance of the additional shares for listing by the NYSE Amex. Regulatory approval was received in
December 2008.
Stock Issued for Settlement of Put Option
In return for providing bridge loan financing to the Company during the year ended September 30, 2008 (See Note
7), Auramet Trading LLC (“Auramet”) received 160,000 shares of common stock of the Company. In addition,
Auramet received a put option for the 160,000 shares of common stock issued, exercisable ninety days from the
maturity date of the bridge loan, to put some or all of the 160,000 common shares back to the Company at a
redemption price of $2.00 per share.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, Auramet indicated its intention to exercise the put option and return the
shares to the Company. The Company and Auramet agreed that the Company would issue an additional 535,652
shares of common stock, valued at the trailing 30 day average closing price of the Company’s stock of $0.46 per
share, to Auramet in lieu of settling the option with a cash payment. These shares were issued in March 2009 and a
loss on the derivative of $154,064 and $92,336 was recorded in the consolidated statements of operations for the
years ending September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Stock Issued for Settlement of Offering Costs Arising from the Proposed Acquisition of SMD
In October 2008, the Company and Ronald Guill mutually agreed by written consent to terminate the Stock
Purchase Agreement previously entered into between the Company and Mr. Guill in February 2008, which would
have provided for the purchase by the Company of all of Mr. Guill’s membership interests in SMD. The Company
had engaged a full service investment banking and institutional securities firm to render an opinion to the
Company’s Board as to whether the consideration to be paid by the Company for the membership interests of SMD
was fair, from a financial point of view. The Company also engaged this firm to arrange for financing of the
acquisition of SMD’s membership interests. All fees to be paid by the Company for these services were
contemplated to be paid out of proceeds raised during the financing.
Subsequent to the termination of the acquisition of SMD and the failure of the investment banking firm to arrange
financing, an invoice was received by the Company from the investment banking firm for the provision of the
fairness opinion, as well as legal fees incurred by the firm during the course of the financing. The total amount
charged for the services provided was $923,957. In July 2009, the Company agreed to satisfy the outstanding
invoice by payment of $50,000 in cash and issuance of 950,000 common shares of the Company subject to approval
by the NYSE Amex. The Stock Settlement and Release Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the Company and
the investment banking firm was finalized in July 2009. As a result of the Agreement, the total expense incurred by
the Company was $396,750, comprised of the $50,000 in cash and $346,750, equal to the fair market value of the
950,000 shares of the Company as of the date of the Agreement. This expense has been included in professional
fees in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 2009.
Stock Issued for Services
During the year ended September 30, 2009, 229,000 shares of common stock were issued to employees and
directors of the Company as incentive bonuses under the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (amended). In
addition, 35,000 shares of common stock were issued to a consultant upon exercise of stock options previously
issued to the consultant under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (Amended). All of the options exercised were
exercised via the cashless exercise provisions of the plan.
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NOTE 12 – COMMON STOCK AND WARRANTS, (continued):
Warrants
The following is a summary of the Company’s warrants outstanding:

Shares
3,618,061 $
447,447
(1,708,273)
(55,501)
2,301,734
(963,800)
1,337,934 $

Outstanding at September 30, 2007
Issued
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at September 30, 2008
Issued
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at September 30, 2009(1)
(1)

These warrants expire as follows:
Shares
1,337,934
1,337,934

(2)

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
1.62
3.50
(1.00)
(1.00)
2.45
(1.00)
0.50(2)

Price
$0.50(2)

Expiration Date
October 16, 2009

In September 2009, the Company amended the terms of its outstanding warrants to encourage holders to exercise
their warrants. As a result, the exercise price of the warrants outstanding at September 30, 2009 was amended
from $3.50 per warrant to $0.50, and the expiration date was extended from September 30, 2009 to October 16,
2009. 1,085,944 of these warrants were exercised subsequent to September 30, 2009 (See Note 17).

NOTE 13 – STOCK OPTIONS:
The Company has established an Equity Incentive Plan to authorize the granting of up to 7,000,000 (as amended by
shareholders of the Company on August 22, 2008) stock options to employees, directors and consultants. Upon
exercise of options, shares are issued from the available authorized shares of the Company. Option awards are
generally granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant.
The fair value of each option award was estimated on the date of grant using the assumptions noted in the following
table.
2009
105.20% -122.60%
111.54%

Expected volatility
Weighted-average volatility
Expected dividends
Expected term (in years)
Risk-free rate
Expected forfeiture rate

2008
77.30% - 82.30%
77.97%
-

2-3
1.02% - 1.49%
10%
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NOTE 13 – STOCK OPTIONS, (continued):
The following is a summary of the Company’s options issued under the Stock Incentive Plan:

Outstanding at September 30, 2007
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at September 30, 2008

Shares
2,073,333
2,475,000
(630,831)
3,917,502

$

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
2.13
2.99
(2.30)
2.65

Exercisable at September 30, 2008

1,825,428

$

2.38

$

1.07

$

2.65
0.41

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the
period ended September 30, 2008
Outstanding at September 30, 2008
Granted

3,917,502
4,678,500

Exercised
Expired and forfeited
Outstanding at September 30, 2009

$

(75,000)
(2,285,834)
6,235,168 $

Exercisable at September 30, 2009

4,005,933

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the
period ended September 30, 2009

(0.80)
(2.83)
0.92

$

1.02

$

0.31

The average remaining contractual term of the options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2009 was 3.97
and 3.89 years, respectively. The average remaining contractual term of the options outstanding and exercisable at
September 30, 2008 was 3.86 and 3.47 years, respectively. Options exercised during the year ending September 30,
2009 were exercised on a cashless basis, resulting in the issuance of 35,000 shares based on the current price of the
Company’s stock on the date of exercise. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ending
September 30, 2009 and 2008 was $52,500 and none, respectively.
Total compensation cost charged against operations under the plan for employees was $1,609,093 and $1,602,977
for the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These costs are classified under salaries and benefits
expense. Total compensation cost charged against operations under the plan for directors and consultants was
$464,953 and $410,862 for the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These costs are classified
under other general and administrative expenses.
As of September 30, 2009, total unrecognized compensation expense related to options was $803,398 and the related
weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is approximately 0.63 years. The aggregate
intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as of September 30, 2009, before applicable income taxes, was
$1,407,127 and $672,650, respectively, based on our closing price of $0.73 per common share at September 30,
2009.
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NOTE 14 – PREFERRED STOCK:
Timberline is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.01 par value. The Board of Directors
of Timberline is authorized to issue the preferred stock from time to time in series, and is further authorized to
establish such series, to fix and determine the variations in the relative rights and preferences as between series, to
fix voting rights, if any, for each series, and to allow for the conversion of preferred stock into Common Stock.
Series A Preferred Stock
On February 26, 2006, our Board of Directors adopted a resolution creating a series of Five Million Shares
(5,000,000) shares of voting, convertible Preferred Stock designated as Series A Preferred Stock. The Preferred
Stock was issued to Doug Kettle and Dave Deeds (the “Kettle Shareholders”) as a part of the consideration delivered
to them for the acquisition of Timberline Drilling.
In March 2007, the Kettle Shareholders converted a total of 300,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred
Stock into 300,000 shares of Common Stock pursuant to the conversion rights of the Series A Preferred Stock
Resolution. The Series A Preferred Stock were convertible into common stock at the rate of one share of common
stock for one share of preferred stock subject to certain exceptions and adjustments including anti-dilution
provisions.
On June 27, 2008, the Company redeemed and cancelled 3,525,000 of the 4,700,000 Series A Preferred Stock from
the Kettle Shareholders for $7,500,000. The difference of $6,090,000 between the purchase price and the
$1,410,000 carrying value of the Series A Preferred Stock was recognized as a reduction to additional paid-in
capital. The remaining 1,175,000 Series A Preferred Stock were converted to common stock by the Kettle
Shareholders and sold to a third party investor.
At both September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, none of the Series A Preferred stock remains outstanding.
NOTE 15 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Real Estate Lease Commitments
The Company has real estate lease commitments related to its main office in Coeur d’Alene, Idaho, a facility in
Butte, Montana, offices of Timberline Drilling in Coeur d’Alene, Idaho, a storage shop in Coeur d’Alene, Idaho, and
its operational facility in Elko, Nevada. The Company’s Mexico subsidiary also leases facilities for its
administrative office and warehouse under defined term lease agreements which are for one year. Total office and
storage rental expense aggregated $284,015 and $294,553 for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
Annual lease obligations until the termination of the leases are as follows:
For the year ending September 30,
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$289,240
$151,790
$101,220
$ 34,305
$
0

Unpaid IRS Interest and Penalties
The Company has received notice from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that Timberline Drilling has been
assessed late filing penalties for payroll taxes not paid on a timely basis during the period from October 1, 2007
through May 15, 2008. As of September 30, 2009, the balance of those unpaid interest and penalties is $424,262.

57

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009
NOTE 15 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, (continued):
The Company has negotiated tacit approval to a payment plan with the IRS relating to the unpaid interest and
penalties owed as of September 30, 2009. In April 2009, the Company began making $10,000 monthly installment
payments on the outstanding balance of interest and penalties. During the year ended September 30, 2009,
Timberline Drilling’s assets became subject to a tax lien until all interest and penalties assessed by the IRS are
satisfied. If the Company fails to comply with the negotiated payment plan or is otherwise unable to pay the interest
and penalties owed to the IRS, the IRS could force the sale of certain assets of Timberline Drilling to satisfy the
interest and penalties due.
Environmental Contingencies
The Company has, in past years, been engaged in mining in northern Idaho, which is currently the site of a federal
Superfund cleanup project. Although the Company is no longer involved in mining in this or other areas at present,
the possibility exists that environmental cleanup or other environmental restoration procedures could remain to be
completed or mandated by law, causing unpredictable and unexpected liabilities to arise. At the date of these
financial statements, the Company is not aware of any environmental issues or litigation relating to any of its current
or former properties.
NOTE 16 – SEGMENT INFORMATION:
The Company has three operating segments at September 30, 2009 and 2008: drilling revenues from Timberline
Drilling; drilling revenues in Mexico through Timberline Drilling’s subsidiary, World Wide Exploration; and
Timberline’s exploration activities.
Segment information (after intercompany eliminations) for the years end September 30, 2009, and 2008 is as
follows:
2009
2008
Revenues:
Timberline Resources
$
$
Timberline Drilling
13,242,093
22,660,556
World Wide Exploration
4,331,005
9,068,061
Total revenues
$
17,573,098
$
31,728,617
Income / (Loss) before income taxes:
Timberline Resources
Timberline Drilling
World Wide Exploration
Loss before income taxes
Identifiable assets:
Timberline Resources
Timberline Drilling
World Wide Exploration
Total identifiable assets
Depreciation and amortization:
Timberline Resources
Timberline Drilling
World Wide Exploration
Total depreciation and amortization

$
$
$
$
$
$
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(5,997,234)
(1,132,262)
(324,221)
(7,453,717)

$

1,323,051
9,997,792
2,703,384
14,024,227

$

36,492
1,037,670
293,030
1,367,192

$

$
$
$

(7,966,645)
(3,401,329)
1,996,528
(9,371,446)
2,803,202
12,456,114
5,110,471
20,369,787
148,646
1,011,451
322,948
1,483,045
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NOTE 16 – SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued):
Expenditures for additions to capital assets
Timberline Resources
Timberline Drilling
World Wide Exploration
Total expenditures for additions to capital assets

$
$

463,523
20,979
484,502

$
$

261,485
2,527,606
663,777
3,452,868

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements included in the Company’s annual report filed on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2009, after considering newly adopted accounting pronouncements described elsewhere herein. Separate
management of each segment is required because each business unit is subject to different marketing, production,
and technology strategies.
During the year ended September 30, 2009, revenues from transactions with two customers each amounted to 10%
or more of our consolidated revenues. Customer A accounted for revenue of $11,888,386 and Customer B
accounted for revenue of $4,266,158. The revenue for customer A is reported through Timberline Drilling, while the
revenue for customer B is reported through World Wide Exploration.
During the year ended September 30, 2008, revenues from transactions with five customers each amounted to 10%
or more of our consolidated revenues. Customer A accounted for revenue of $8,229,007, Customer B accounted for
revenue of $6,252,679, Customer C accounted for revenue of $3,856,818, Customer D accounted for revenue of
$3,599,040 and Customer E accounted for revenue of $3,219,499. The revenue for customers A, C, D and E is
reported through Timberline Drilling, while the revenue for customer B is reported through World Wide
Exploration.
The assets of Timberline are located in the United States. The assets of Timberline Drilling are also located in the
United States and their revenues are derived from drilling contracts in the United States. The assets of World Wide
Exploration are located in Mexico and their revenues are derived from drilling contracts in Mexico.
Timberline is not an operating entity at this point insofar as they are not generating revenues from the sales of their
properties, but they are actively exploring several properties for their mining potential.
NOTE 17 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
The Company’s financial statements include subsequent events evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure
through the date of financial statement issuance on December 4, 2009.
Warrant Exercises
In September 2009, the Company amended the terms of the Company’s outstanding warrants to encourage warrant
holders to exercise their warrants. At September 30, 2009, the Company had 1,337,934 warrants outstanding with an
exercise price of $3.50 and expiration dates between September 30, 2009 and October 11, 2009. In order to induce
the exercise of the warrants, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized that the exercise price of the warrants be
reduced. The amended exercise price for each warrant was $0.50. Additionally, to permit holders of the warrants
adequate time to contemplate the repricing, the expiration dates of the warrants was extended until October 16,
2009. 1,085,944 of the 1,337,934 outstanding warrants were exercised by warrant holders on or before October 16,
2009, generating proceeds to the Company of $542,972.
Private Placement
During November 2009, the Company initiated a private placement of the Company’s restricted common stock.
Under the private placement subscription agreement, the Company could sell up to 3,000,000 units for a total of
$3,000,000. The Company reserved the right to increase the amount of the offering in the event that the offering
was oversubscribed. Each unit consisted of one share of common stock and one half of one Class A Warrant; with
each whole warrant exercisable to acquire one additional share of common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per
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NOTE 17 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, (continued):
share until May 31, 2010, and thereafter at an exercise price of $1.75 per share until March 25, 2011. No registration
rights were granted for the shares of common stock or the shares of common stock underlying the warrants. The
units were sold for $1.00 each, representing management’s estimate of the fair value of the unit. The Company sold
a total of 3,003,400 units for gross proceeds of $3,003,400 and the placement closed on November 23, 2009.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
At the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision of and
with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, Randal
Hardy (“CEO/CFO”) and Chief Accounting Officer, Craig Crowell, (“CAO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operations of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a – 15(e) and Rule 15d – 15(e) under the Exchange Act).
Based on that evaluation the CEO/CFO and the CAO have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures
were adequately designed and effective in ensuring that: (i) information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it
files or submits to the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms and (ii) material information required to be disclosed in
our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO/CFO and
CAO, as appropriate, to allow for accurate and timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The management of Timberline is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
for the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) and all related information appearing in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:
1.

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of our assets;

2.

provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with the authorization of management and/or of our Board of Directors; and

3.

provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of any unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness in future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Management conducted an evaluation of the design and operation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2009 based on the criteria in a framework developed by the Company’s management pursuant to and in
compliance with the principles and framework of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
This evaluation included review of the documentation of controls, evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls,
walkthroughs of the operating effectiveness of controls and a conclusion on this evaluation. Based on this evaluation,
management has concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2009.
This Report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f)),
that occurred during the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2009 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers” in our
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, which
information is incorporated by reference to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers” in our
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, which
information is incorporated by reference to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS
Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of Principal Shareholders and
Management” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to Regulation
14A, which information is incorporated by reference to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE
Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption “Certain Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated by reference
to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions “Audit Committee Report” in our definitive proxy statement to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange commission pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated by
reference to this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Documents Filed as Part of Report
Financial Statements
The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation are filed as part of this report:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Report of Registered Public Accounting Firm dated December 4, 2009.
Consolidated Balance Sheets—At September 30, 2009 and 2008.
Consolidated Statements of Operations—Years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.
Consolidated Statements of changes in Stockholders’ Equity—Years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
Exhibit No.

Description of Document

3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
10.1
10.2
10.3

Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (9)
By-Laws of the Registrant (9)
Specimen of the Common Stock Certificate (1)
Form of Warrant for November 2009 Private Placement
Convertible Note between the Company and Ron and Stacey Guill (10)
Term Note between the Company and Small Mine Development, LLC (10)
Hecla Agreement//Joint Venture Agreement for Snowstorm, Idaho (1)
Snowshoe Mining Co. Lease//Mineral Lease Property at Snowstorm, Idaho (1)
Western Goldfields, Inc. Lease//Mineral Lease with Western Goldfields, Inc./Claim at the Snowstorm Project,
Idaho (1)
P. Dircksen Agreement/Current Consulting Agreement (1)
2005 Equity Incentive Plan approved at the September 23, 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (1)
2/1/06 Memorandum of Royalty Deed and Agreement between Hecla Mining Co. and the Registrant (2)
2/1/06 Quitclaim Deed and Assignment between Hecla Mining Co. and the Registrant (3)
Amended 2005 Equity Incentive Plan approved at the September 22, 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (4)
5/1/06, Employment Agreement with VP Paul Dircksen (5)
Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated July 19, 2007 between the Registrant and Butte Highlands
Mining Company (6)
Promissory Note, dated June 27, 2008, entered into between Timberline Resources Corporation and Auramet
Trading, LLC.(7)
Severance Agreement, dated March 10, 2008 among Timberline Resources Corporation, Douglas Kettle and
David and Margaret Deeds.(7)
Amendment No. 1 to Timberline Resources Corporation’s Amended 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (8)
Agreement and Plan of Merger between Timberline Resources Corporation, an Idaho corporation ,and
Timberline Resources Corporation, a Delaware corporation, date August 22, 2008 (9)
Pledge Agreement between the Company and Ron and Stacey Guill. (10)
Security Agreement between the Company and Ron and Stacey Guill.(10)
Credit Agreement between the Company and Small Mine Development, LLC. (10)
Pledge Agreement between the Company and Small Mine Development, LLC. (10)
Right of First Refusal between the Company and Small Mine Development, LLC. (10)
Code of Ethics (2)
List of Subsidiaries
Consent of Decoria, Maichel & Teague
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 (Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Exchange Act)
Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rules
13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Exchange Act)
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 1350)
Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C. 1350)

10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
14
21
23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
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(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10SB as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on September 29, 2005.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on February 6, 2006.
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on February 6, 2006.
(4) Incorporated by reference Exhibit A to the Company’s Schedule DEF14A (Proxy Statement) as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September
8, 2006
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10KSB as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on January 16, 2007.
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 23, 2007.
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 3, 2008..
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 26, 2008.
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 29, 2008.
(10) Incorporated by reference to Ron and Stacey Guill’s Schedule 13-D as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 24, 2008.
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized:
TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION
/s/ Randal Hardy
Randal Hardy
/s/ Craig Crowell

Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Executive and, Financial
Officer)
Chief Accounting Officer (Principal
Accounting Officer)

December 8, 2009

December 8, 2009

Craig Crowell
In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report on
Form 10-K was signed by the following persons in the capacities on the dates stated:
/s/ Randal Hardy
Randal Hardy

/s/ Craig Crowell

Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Executive and Financial Officer)

December 8, 2009

Chief Accounting Officer (Principal
Accounting Officer)

December 8, 2009

Director, Executive Chairman of the Board, and
Vice-President, Exploration

December 8, 2009

Director

December 8, 2009

Director

December 8, 2009

Director

December 8, 2009

Director

December 8, 2009

Craig Crowell
/s/ Paul Dircksen
Paul Dircksen
/s/ Vance Thornsberry
Vance Thornsberry
/s/ Eric Klepfer
Eric Klepfer
/s/ Ron Guill
Ron Guill
/s/ James H. Moore
James H. Moore
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Exhibit 4.2
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE
REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”).
THESE SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) IF THE SECURITIES HAVE
BEEN REGISTERED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS
(C) IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 144 THEREUNDER, IF
APPLICABLE, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, OR (D)
IN A TRANSACTION THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE OFFER
AND SALE OF SECURITIES, AND THE HOLDER HAS, PRIOR TO SUCH SALE, FURNISHED TO
THE COMPANY AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OF RECOGNIZED STANDING, OR OTHER
EVIDENCE OF EXEMPTION, REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY. HEDGING
TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE
CONDUCTED UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. SECURITIES LAWS.
THIS WARRANT AND THE SECURITIES DELIVERABLE UPON EXERCISE HEREOF HAVE
NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE “U.S. SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF
THE UNITED STATES. THIS WARRANT MAY NOT BE EXERCISED BY OR ON BEHALF OF A
“U.S. PERSON” OR A PERSON IN THE UNITED STATES UNLESS THE WARRANT AND THE
UNDERLYING SECURITIES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT
AND THE APPLICABLE SECURITIES LEGISLATION OF ANY SUCH STATE OR AN
EXEMPTION FROM SUCH REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS IS AVAILABLE. “UNITED
STATES” AND “U.S. PERSON” ARE AS DEFINED BY REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S.
SECURITIES ACT.

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION
CLASS A WARRANTS
TO PURCHASE SHARES
OF COMMON STOCK OF
TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION
CERTIFICATE NO.: A-♦
Warrant to Purchase
♦ Shares of Common Stock
November 23, 2009
(“Issue Date”)
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the
"Company"), hereby certifies that __________________________________, its successor or permitted assigns (the
"Holder"), is entitled, subject to the provisions of this Class A Warrant, to purchase from the Company, at the times
specified herein, ♦ fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per
share (the "Common Stock"), at a purchase price per share equal to the Exercise Price (as hereinafter defined).
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1.

Definitions. (a) The following terms, as used herein, have the following meanings:

"Affiliate" shall have the meaning given to such term in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended.
"Business Day" means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in the City of
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho are authorized by law to close.
"Common Stock" means the Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company.
"Duly Endorsed" means duly endorsed in blank by the Person or Persons in whose name a stock certificate is
registered or accompanied by a duly executed stock assignment separate from the certificate with the signature(s)
thereon guaranteed by a commercial bank or trust company or a member of a national securities exchange or of the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.
“Exercise Date” means the date a Warrant Exercise Notice is delivered to the Company in the manner provided in
Section 9 below.
"Exercise Price" means US$1.50 per share until May 31, 2010 and thereafter at an exercise price of US$1.75 until
the Expiration Date.
"Expiration Date" means 5:00 p.m. (Coeur d’Alene, Idaho) on November 15, 2011; provided that if such date shall
in the City of Coeur d’Alene, Idaho be a holiday or a day on which banks are authorized to close, then 5:00 p.m. on
the next following day which in the City of Coeur d’Alene, Idaho is not a holiday or a day on which banks are
authorized to close.
"Initial Warrant Exercise Date" means the date hereof.
"Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, joint stock company, association, joint venture, or any
other entity or organization, including a government or political subdivision or an agency or instrumentality thereof.
“Principal Market” means the NYSE Amex or the primary securities exchanges or market on which such security
may at the time be listed or quoted for trading.
"Warrant Shares" means the shares of Common Stock deliverable upon exercise of this Warrant, as adjusted from
time to time.
2.

Exercise of Warrant.

(a)
The Holder is entitled to exercise this Warrant in whole or in part at any time on or after the Initial
Warrant Exercise Date until the Expiration Date. To exercise this Warrant, the Holder shall execute and deliver to
the Company a Warrant Exercise Notice substantially in the form annexed hereto. No earlier than five (5) days after
delivery of the Warrant Exercise Notice, the Holder shall deliver to the Company this Warrant Certificate, including
the Warrant Exercise Subscription Form forming a part hereof duly executed by the Holder, together with payment
of the applicable Exercise Price. Upon such delivery and payment, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of
record of the Warrant Shares subject to such exercise, notwithstanding that the stock transfer books of the Company
shall then be closed or that certificates representing such Warrant Shares shall not then be actually delivered to the
Holder. No fractional shares will be issued.
(b)
The Exercise Price may be paid to the Company in cash or by certified or official bank check or
bank cashier's check payable to the order of the Company, or by wire transfer or by any combination of cash, check
or wire transfer.
(c)
If the Holder exercises this Warrant in part, this Warrant Certificate shall be surrendered by the
Holder to the Company and a new Warrant Certificate of the same tenor and for the unexercised number of Warrant
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Shares shall be executed by the Company. The Company shall register the new Warrant Certificate in the name of
the Holder or in such name or names of its transferee pursuant to paragraph 6 hereof as may be directed in writing
by the Holder and deliver the new Warrant Certificate to the Person or Persons entitled to receive the same.
(d)
Upon surrender of this Warrant Certificate in conformity with the foregoing provisions, the
Company shall transfer to the Holder of this Warrant Certificate appropriate evidence of ownership of the shares of
Common Stock or other securities or property to which the Holder is entitled, registered or otherwise placed in, or
payable to the order of, the name or names of the Holder or such transferee as may be directed in writing by the
Holder, and shall deliver such evidence of ownership and any other securities or property to the Person or Persons
entitled to receive the same.
(e)
In no event may the Holder exercise these Warrants in whole or in part unless the Holder is an
“accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities
Act”), or the Holder is a non-U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act) exercising these
Warrants in an “off shore transaction” in accordance with the requirements of Regulation S of the U.S. Securities
Act.
3.
Exercise Restrictions. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, no Holder shall exercise these
Warrants, if as a result of such conversion the holder would then become a “ten percent beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 16a-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of Common Stock. For greater
certainty, the Warrants shall not be exercisable by the Holder or redeemed by the Company, if, after giving effect to
such exercise, the holder of such securities, together with its affiliates, would in aggregate beneficially own, or
exercise control or direction over that number of voting securities of the Company which is 9.99% or greater of the
total issued and outstanding voting securities of the Company, immediately after giving effect to such exercise;
provided, however, that upon a holder of these Warrants providing the Company with a Waiver Notice that such
holder would like to waive the provisions of this paragraph 3 with regard to any or all shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of these Warrants, this paragraph 3 shall be of no force or effect with regard to those shares
of Common Stock referenced in the Waiver Notice; provided, further, that this provision shall be of no further force
or effect during the sixty-one (61) days immediately preceding the expiration of the term of these Warrants.
4.
Restrictive Legend. Certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Warrant shall
bear a legend substantially in the form of the legend set forth on the first page of this Warrant Certificate to the
extent that and for so long as such legend is required pursuant to applicable law.
5.

Covenants of the Company.

(a)
The Company hereby agrees that at all times there shall be reserved for issuance and delivery upon
exercise of this Warrant such number of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock or other securities of
the Company from time to time issuable upon exercise of this Warrant as will be sufficient to permit the exercise in
full of this Warrant. All such shares shall be duly authorized and, when issued upon such exercise, shall be validly
issued, fully paid and non-assessable, free and clear of all liens, security interests, charges and other encumbrances
or restrictions on sale and free and clear of all preemptive rights.
(b)
The Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate of
incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of
securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of
this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all
such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder against impairment. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the Company will (i) not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock
receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately
prior to such increase in par value, (ii) take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of
this Warrant, and (iii) use its best efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any public
regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof as may be necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations
under this Warrant.
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(c)
Before taking any action which would cause an adjustment reducing the current Exercise Price
below the then par value, if any, of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, the
Company shall take any corporate action which may be necessary in order that the Company may validly and legally
issue fully paid and non-assessable shares of such Common Stock at such adjusted Exercise Price.
(d)
Before taking any action which would result in an adjustment in the number of shares of Common
Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable or in the Exercise Price, the Company shall obtain all such
authorizations or exemptions thereof, or consents thereto, as may be necessary from any public regulatory body or
bodies having jurisdiction thereof.
(e)
The Company covenants that during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will use its best
efforts to comply with any and all reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
(f)
The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary (i) to maintain a Principal
Market for its Common Shares in the United States and (ii) to assure that such Warrant Stock may be issued as
provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Principal Market
upon which the Common Stock may be listed.
(g)
The Company shall preserve and maintain its corporate existence and all licenses and permits that
are material to the proper conduct of its business.
(h)
The Company will not close its shareholder books or records in any manner which prevents the
timely exercise of this Warrant.
6.

Exchange, Transfer or Assignment of Warrant; Registration.

(a)
Each taker and holder of this Warrant Certificate by taking or holding the same, consents and
agrees that the registered holder hereof may be treated by the Company and all other persons dealing with this
Warrant Certificate as the absolute owner hereof for any purpose and as the person entitled to exercise the rights
represented hereby.
(b)
The Holder agrees that it will not transfer, hypothecate, sell, assign, pledge or encumber any
Warrants or Warrant Shares unless such securities are registered under the U.S. Securities Act and registered or
qualified under any applicable state securities laws or such transfer is affected pursuant to an available exemption
from registration.
7.
Anti-Dilution Provisions. The Exercise Price in effect at any time and the number and kind of securities
purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrant shall be subject to adjustment from time to time upon the happening of
certain events as follows:
(a)
In case the Company shall (i) declare a dividend or make a distribution on its outstanding shares of
Common Stock in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivide or reclassify its outstanding shares of Common Stock
into a greater number of shares, or (iii) combine or reclassify its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller
number of shares, the number of Warrant Shares shall be proportionately adjusted to reflect such dividend,
distribution, subdivision, reclassification or combination. For example, if the Company declares a 2 for 1 stock split
and the number of Warrant Shares immediately prior to such event was 200,000, the number of Warrant Shares
immediately after such event would be 400,000. Such adjustment shall be made successively whenever any event
listed above shall occur.
(b)
Whenever the number of Warrant Shares is adjusted pursuant to Subsection (a) above, the
Exercise Price shall simultaneously be adjusted by multiplying the Exercise Price immediately prior to such event
by the number of Warrant Shares immediately prior to such event and dividing the product so obtained by the
number of Warrant Shares, as adjusted. If an Exercise Price has not yet been established, an adjustment thereof shall
be deferred until one is established pursuant to the terms of this Warrant.
(c)

No adjustment in the Exercise Price shall be required unless such adjustment would require an
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increase or decrease of at least five percent (5%) in such price; provided, however, that any adjustments which by
reason of this Subsection (c) are not required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any
subsequent adjustment required to be made hereunder. All calculations under this Section 7 shall be made to the
nearest cent or to the nearest one-hundredth of a share, as the case may be.
(d)
Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted, as herein provided, the Company shall promptly cause a
notice setting forth the adjusted Exercise Price and adjusted number of Shares issuable upon exercise of each
Warrant to be mailed to the Holder. The Company may retain a firm of independent certified public accountants
selected by the Board of Directors (who may be the regular accountants employed by the Company) to make any
computation required by this Section 7, and a certificate signed by such firm shall be conclusive evidence of the
correctness of such adjustment.
(e)
In the event that at any time, as a result of an adjustment made pursuant to Subsection (a) above,
the Holder of this Warrant thereafter shall become entitled to receive any shares of the Company, other than
Common Stock, thereafter the number of such other shares so receivable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be
subject to adjustment from time to time in a manner and on terms as nearly equivalent as practicable to the
provisions with respect to the Common Stock contained in Subsection (a), above.
(f)
Irrespective of any adjustments in the Exercise Price or the number or kind of shares purchasable
upon exercise of this Warrant, Warrants theretofore or thereafter issued may continue to express the same price and
number and kind of shares as are stated in this Warrant.
(g)
In case at any time or from time to time conditions arise by reasons of action taken by the
Company, which in the reasonable opinion of its Board of Directors, are not adequately covered by the provisions of
Section 7 hereof, and which might materially and adversely affect the exercise rights of the Holder hereof, the Board
of Directors shall appoint a firm of independent certified public accountants, which may be the firm regularly
retained by the Company, which will give their opinion upon the adjustment, if any, on a basis consistent with the
standards established in the other provisions of Section 7 necessary with respect to the Exercise Price then in effect
and the number of shares of Common Stock for which the Warrant is exercisable, so as to preserve, without dilution,
the exercise rights of the Holder. Upon receipt of such opinion, the Board of Directors shall forthwith make the
adjustments described therein.
8.
Loss or Destruction of Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence satisfactory to it (in the
exercise of its reasonable discretion) of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant Certificate, and (in
the case of loss, theft or destruction) of reasonably satisfactory indemnification, and upon surrender and cancellation
of this Warrant Certificate, if mutilated, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant Certificate of like
tenor and date.
9.
Notices. Any notice, demand or delivery authorized by this Warrant Certificate shall be in writing and shall
be given to the Holder or the Company, as the case may be, at its address (or telecopier number) set forth below, or
such other address (or telecopier number) as shall have been furnished to the party giving or making such notice,
demand or delivery:
If to the Company:

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION
101 East Lakeside Avenue
Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814
Attn: Randal Hardy, CEO
Fax: 208-664-4860

With a copy to:

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP
Republic Plaza Building
370 Seventeenth Street, Suite 4700
Denver, CO 80202-5647
Attn: Kenneth G. Sam, esq.
Fax: 303-629-3450
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If to the Holder:

at the address set forth on the last page of this Warrant.

Each such notice, demand or delivery shall be effective (i) if given by telecopy, when such telecopy is transmitted to
the telecopy number specified herein and the intended recipient confirms the receipt of such telecopy or (ii) if given
by any other means, when received at the address specified herein.
10.
Rights of the Holder. Prior to the exercise of any Warrant, the Holder shall not, by virtue hereof, be
entitled to any rights of a shareholder of the Company, including, without limitation, the right to vote, to receive
dividends or other distributions, to exercise any preemptive right or any notice of any proceedings of the Company
except as may be specifically provided for herein.
11.
GOVERNING LAW. THIS WARRANT CERTIFICATE AND ALL RIGHTS ARISING HEREUNDER
SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE
STATE OF DELAWARE, AND THE PERFORMANCE THEREOF SHALL BE GOVERNED AND ENFORCED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS.
12.
Amendments; Waivers. Any provision of this Warrant Certificate may be amended or waived if, and only
if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and signed, in the case of an amendment, by the Holder and the
Company, or in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom the waiver is to be effective. No failure or delay by
either party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any
single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right,
power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or
remedies provided by law.
13.
Company Reorganization. In the event of any sale of substantially all the assets of the Company or any
reorganization, reclassification, merger or consolidation of the Company where the Company is not the surviving
entity, then as a condition to the Company entering into such transaction, the entity acquiring such assets or the
surviving entity, as the case may be, shall agree to assume the Company's obligations hereunder.

************
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has duly caused this Warrant to be signed by its duly authorized officer
and to be dated as of ________________, 2009.

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION

By:
Name: Randal L. Hardy
Title: Chief Executive Officer
HOLDER:
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WARRANT EXERCISE NOTICE
To:

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION

The undersigned hereby provides notice to TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION (the "Company") that it
intends to exercise its Class A Warrant for the purchase of _______________ shares (the "Shares") of Common
Stock, par value $0.001 per share, at $______________ per Share (the Exercise Price currently in effect pursuant to
the Warrant).

Date:

(Signature of Owner)
(Street Address)
(City)

(State) (Zip Code)
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WARRANT EXERCISE SUBSCRIPTION FORM
(To be executed only upon exercise of the Warrant
after delivery of Warrant Exercise Notice)
To:

TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION

The undersigned irrevocably exercises the Class A Warrant for the purchase of _______________ shares (the
"Shares") of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of TIMBERLINE RESOURCES CORPORATION (the
"Company") at $______________ per Share (the Exercise Price currently in effect pursuant to the Warrant).
The undersigned herewith makes payment of $_____________ (such payment being made in cash or by certified or
official bank or bank cashier's check payable to the order of the Company or by any permitted combination of such
cash or check), all on the terms and conditions specified in the within Warrant Certificate, surrenders this Warrant
Certificate and all right, title and interest therein to the Company and directs that the Shares deliverable upon the
exercise of this Warrant be registered or placed in the name and at the address specified below and delivered thereto.
The undersigned is either (i) an “accredited investor” as defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”), and is exercising these Warrants in a transaction that does not require
registration under the U.S. Securities Act or (ii) is not a U.S. Person or person in the United States and is exercising
these Warrants in an “off shore transaction” in accordance with the requirements of Regulation S of the U.S.
Securities Act. The terms U.S. Person, United States and off-shore transaction have the meanings set forth in
Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act.
Number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned or deemed beneficially owned by the Holder on the date of
Exercise: _________________________
Check this box, if applicable:

The undersigned hereby represents that it has either sold the common stock to be issued hereunder or
intends to sell such common stock within five (5) business days of receipt of such common stock in compliance with
the Plan of Distribution set forth in the Registration Statement file under the U.S. Securities Act in respect to such
common stock and in compliance with the applicable securities law. The undersigned hereby requests that the share
certificate representing the common stock be issued without a restrictive legend.

Date:

(Signature of Owner)
(Street Address)
(City)

(State) (Zip Code)

Securities and/or check to be issued to:
Please insert social security or identifying number:
Name:
Street Address:
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City, State and Zip Code:
Any unexercised portion of the Warrant evidenced by the within Warrant Certificate to be issued to:

Please insert social security or identifying number:
Name:
Street Address:
City, State and Zip Code:
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WARRANT ASSIGNMENT FORM
Dated ___________ ___, _____
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, _______________________
unto_____________________________(the "Assignee"),

hereby

sells,

assigns

and

transfers

(please type or print in block letters)

(insert address)
its right to purchase up to shares of Common Stock represented by these Warrants and does hereby irrevocably
constitute and appoint _______________________ Attorney, to transfer the same on the books of the Company,
with full power of substitution in the premises.

Signature:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER
THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THESE
SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE OFFER AND SALE OF
SECURITIES.
To be completed by transferee.
In connection with this transfer: (check one):
______

The undersigned transferee hereby certifies that (i) it is not a U.S. Person and was not offered the
Warrants while in the United States and did not execute this certificate while within the United
States, (ii) it is not acquiring any of the Warrants represented by this Warrant Certificate by or on
behalf of any U.S. person or person within the United States, and (iii) it has in all other respects
complied with the terms of Regulation S of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “US Securities Act”), or any successor rule or regulation of the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission as presently in effect.

______

The undersigned transferee is delivering a written opinion of U.S. counsel to the effect that this
transfer of Warrants has been registered under the US Securities Act or are exempt from
registration thereunder.

Signature:
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Exhibit 21
List of Subsidiaries of Timberline Resources Corporation

Timberline Drilling Inc., Idaho
World Wide Exploration, S.A. de C.V., Mexico

Exhibit 23.1

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Randal Hardy, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Timberline Resources Corporation,

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 8, 2009

By: /s/ Randal Hardy
_____________________________
Randal Hardy
Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial
Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Craig Crowell, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Timberline Resources Corporation,

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 8, 2009

By: /s/ Craig Crowell
_____________________________
Craig Crowell
Chief Accounting Officer
Principal Accounting Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Timberline Resources Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K
for the period ended September 30, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report”), I, Randal Hardy, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.
Date: December 8, 2009
By: /s/ Randal Hardy
_____________________________
Randal Hardy
Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer
Principal Executive and Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the
Report or as a separate disclosure document.

EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Timberline Resources Corporation (the “Company”) on Form
10-K for the period ended September 30, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Craig Crowell, Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.
Date: December 8, 2009
By: /s/ Craig Crowell
_____________________________
Craig Crowell
Chief Accounting Officer
Principal Accounting Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code) and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.

